
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

STATE OF ALASKA 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, 
AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
DIVISION OF OCCUPATIONAL LICENSING 

BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
To ensure that competent, professional and regulated 

commercial services are available to Alaska consumers. 
Ensure that competent, professional and regulated commercial services are available to Alaska consumers. 

 
 



S M T W R F S S M T W R F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 5 6

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
27 28 29 30 31 28 29 30 31

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S
1 2 1 2 3

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
24 25 26 27 28 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

New Year's Day S M T W R F S S M T W R F S
MLK Jr.'s Birthday 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Presidents' Day 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
Seward's Day 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
Memorial Day 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
Independence Day 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30
Labor Day 31
Alaska Day
Veterans' Day
Thanksgiving Day S M T W R F S S M T W R F S
Christmas Day 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
28 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S
1 2 3 4 1 2

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
26 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

S M T W R F S S M T W R F S
1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31
30

07/04

HolidayDate

01/01

Payday

09/02

01/21

10/18

02/18

11/11

03/25

11/28

05/27

12/25

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

Holiday

APRIL

MAY

JUNE

ST
AT

E 
CA

LE
N

D
AR

JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

MARCH
State Holidays

Biweekly employees please refer to 
appropriate collective bargaining unit 
agreement for more information 
regarding holidays.

STATE OF
ALASKA

2019

State calendar maintained by the 
Division of Finance, 

Department of Administration
http://doa.alaska.gov/calendars.html

Revised 08/28/2018



Call to Order / Roll Call 



Board Roster 
 

 

David Nielson, DDS – Board President 

Gail Walden, RDH, BSDH, Board Secretary 

Steven Scheller, DDS 

Dominic Wenzell, DMD 

Kelly lucas, DDS 

Jesse Hronkin, DMD 

Jonathan Woller, DMD 

Brittany Dschaak, RDH 

Robin Wahto, Public Member 



Review / Approve Agenda 



 

STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY, AND  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND 

PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
 

BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS AGENDA 
 

April 15, 2019 
 

550 W 7th Ave, Atwood Building Ste. 1550, Anchorage, AK 99501 
 

Zoom Webinar Number and ID: 
Zoom Webinar: 1(408)638-0968 

Meeting ID: 675-533-190 
 

https://zoom.us/j/675533190 
 

AGENDA 
 TIME  TOPIC               LEAD PERSON 

 1. 9:00 a.m. Call to Order/Roll Call                          CHAIR         

 2. 9:05 a.m. Review of Agenda           CHAIR 
       
 3. 9:10 a.m. Review/Approve Minutes      CHAIR 
 

o February 15, 2019 
o March 08, 2019 

 
 4. 9:15 a.m. Ethics Report               CHAIR 
    
 5. 9:20 a.m. Board Review Applications        CHAIR 

o Vote on Record        

 6.  9:45 a.m. Break         CHAIR  

 7. 10:00 a.m. Specialty Licenses       CHAIR 

 8. 10:30 a.m. Regulations Update         SHER ZINN 

o Deep and Moderate Sedation Expiration Dates 
o Restorative Function Expiration Dates / CE Requirements 
o Coronal Polishing Expiration Dates 

https://zoom.us/j/675533190


 

 9. 11:00 a.m. Probation Report                 HOMESTEAD 

o Case Review Process         FRANCOIS 

10.  11:30 a.m.      Radiological Equipment Inspection     MR. JILLY / CHAIR 

11.      12:00 p.m. Lunch         CHAIR 

12. 1:00 p.m. Public Comment       CHAIR 

13. 1:30 p.m. PDMP Report         LAURA CARRILLO 

14. 2:00 p.m. PDMP Penalty Matric      CHAIR  

o Late PDMP Registrations 
 
15.       2:45 p.m. Break            CHAIR 
                         
16. 3:00 p.m. AAFDO             Stephen Harden/CHAIR 

o References from professionals who have used SAMERI. 

17. 3:30 p.m. Board Business       CHAIR 

o Dental Board Task List 

18.  4:30 p.m. Adjourn        CHAIR  

    



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 



Review / Approve Meeting Minutes 



 

1 
 

STATE OF ALASKA 1 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY AND 2 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, 4 

BUSINESS & PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 5 
BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 6 

 7 
MINUTES OF MEETING 8 

February 15, 2019 9 
 10 

These DRAFT minutes were prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, Business and 11 
Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved by the Board. 12 

 13 
By authority of AS 08.01.070(2) and AS 08.36.040 and in compliance with the provisions of Article 6 14 

of AS 44.62, a meeting of the Board of Dental Examiners was held February 15, 2019, with the 15 
board at 550 W. 7th Ave. Anchorage, AK Suite 1500 and Juneau staff attending via Zoom 16 

Videoconferencing. 17 
 18 

The meeting was called to order by Dr. Paul Silveira, President, at 8:47 a.m. 19 
 20 

Agenda Item 1 - Roll Call 21 
 22 

 Those present, constituting a quorum of the board, were: 23 
 24 
  Dr. Paul Silveira, President – Valdez 25 
  Ms. Gail Walden – Wasilla  26 
  Dr. David Nielson – Anchorage  27 
  Ms. Paula Ross – Anchorage 28 
  Dr. Thomas Kovaleski – Chugiak 29 
  Dr. Steven Scheller – Fairbanks 30 
  Dr. Kelly Lucas – Wasilla 31 
  Dr. Dominic Wenzel - Girdwood 32 
                       33 

In attendance from the Division of Corporations, Business & Professional Licensing, 34 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development were: 35 

 36 
  Ms. Tracy Wiard Occupational Licensing Examiner - Juneau 37 
  Ms. Amber Treston, Records and Licensing Supervisor – Juneau 38 
                       Ms. Jasmin Bautista, Investigator – Anchorage 39 
  Mr. Greg Fancois, Investigator – Anchorage 40 
  Mr. Billy Homestead, Probation Monitor - Anchorage 41 
  Ms. Sher Zinn, Regulation Specialist – Juneau – Teleconference 42 
   43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 



 

2 
 

 Members of the public in attendance: 49 
   50 
  Dr. David Logan – Anchorage  51 

Mr. Daniel Anderson – Radiologic Equipment Inspector – Fairbanks – 52 
Teleconference 53 
The Honorable Judge Pedersen Office of Administrative Hearings – Anchorage 54 

  Mr. Bernard Jilly Chief of Public Health Laboratories – Juneau – Teleconference 55 
  Mr. Stephen Hardin - AAFDO – Tennessee - Teleconference 56 

Mr. John Roberson – AAFDO – Tennessee - Teleconference 57 
 58 
Agenda Item 2 – Review of Agenda  59 
 60 
The board reviewed the DRAFT agendas for the 02.15.2019 Board Meeting.  There were no 61 
suggested changes to the DRAFT version of the agenda for the 02.15.2019 Dental Board Meeting.   62 
 63 
On a motion duly made by Walden, seconded by Ross, and approved unanimously by roll 64 
call vote, it was RESOLVED to approve the agenda with no changes. 65 
 66 
Agenda Item 4 – OAH Review 67 

 68 
On a motion duly made by Ross, seconded by Scheller, and approved unanimously, it was 69 
RESOLVED to go in to executive session in accordance with Alaska Statute 44.62.310(c)(3) 70 
for the purpose of discussing investigative matters which by law, municipal charter, or 71 
ordinance are required to be confidential. Board staff to remain during this session 72 
 73 
Off the record: 8:51 a.m. 74 
On the record: 9:32 a.m. 75 

 76 
On a motion duly made by Walden, seconded by Ross, and approved unanimously by a roll 77 
call vote, it was RESOLVED to adopt the proposed decision in OAH case 18-0527-DEN. 78 
 79 
Agenda Item 5 – Radiological Equipment 80 
 81 
The board met with Mr. Bernard Jilly who serves as the Chief of Public Health Laboratories within 82 
the Department of Health and Social Services Division of Public Health.  This section of Public 83 
Health oversees the registration and regulation of radiological equipment.  The Public Health 84 
Laboratories section of Public Health used to have regulatory authority over dental radiological 85 
equipment and conducted inspections but the responsibility of dental radiological equipment was 86 
moved over to the dental board about 15 years ago.   87 
 88 
Currently, the section of Public Health Laboratories has been absent a radiological inspector for 89 
about a year but are in the process of conducting interviews for the position.  Dr. Silveira suggested 90 
that the board remove their responsibility for the registration and inspection of radiological 91 
equipment for dental offices all together.  He stated with new technology if something is wrong with 92 
the equipment you know right away because you either get a good shot or you don’t and the risk of 93 
harm is so small that he feels the dental board does not need to oversee the registration and 94 
inspections of the equipment. 95 
 96 



 

3 
 

Daniel Anderson called in via videoconference and addressed the board. Mr. Anderson is the only 97 
current X-Ray inspector in the State of Alaska.  He stated he has found missing aluminum X-Ray 98 
filters and the X-Ray coming out is too much soft radiation stopped at the skin.  The dentists who 99 
owned the machines knew something was wrong but not what and did not make any corrections 100 
prior to Mr. Andersons inspection.  Mr. Anderson has found film stored in lead line boxes from the 101 
1950’s and the film from the boxes were being placed in the patient’s mouth.  In addition, Mr. 102 
Anderson noted drifting x-ray heads that patients would have to hold in place while getting an x-ray.  103 
Mr. Anderson has also talked with dental practices advising them to move their film settings from 104 
the older settings to the digital settings.  He stated he only uses 2 weeks to do inspections in 105 
Anchorage and Fairbanks that leaves most of the state’s radiological dental equipment not inspected. 106 
 107 
Dr. Nielsen stated the boards problem has been finding someone who can complete dental 108 
inspections for the entire state.  The board had considered getting manufacturers or the dental 109 
supply companies to perform the inspections but they were not allowed to do that.  Dr. Nielsen 110 
stated it would be nice for the state to take over the program again and instead of performing 111 
inspections on intra orals perform the inspections on cone beams and panna’s. 112 
 113 
The dental board states they have trouble finding qualified applicants due to the required PhD in 114 
physics or something similar.  The board also states the application to become a radiological 115 
inspector is onerous.  Dr. Nielsen asked Mr. Jilly if there would be any willingness for the state to 116 
take back the responsibilities for inspecting radiological equipment.  Mr. Jilly stated they would be 117 
willing to take it on but it would need to be a self-supporting program with the appropriate fees 118 
associated with the program.  It would require one additional FTE and costs for travel, etc.  This 119 
would require a calculation for the fees for each dental office to be inspected.  Mr. Jilly requested the 120 
number of radiologic equipment to be inspected to better calculate fees. 121 
 122 
Mr. Jilly stated that the qualifications for a radiologic equipment inspector are a Bachelor’s degree or 123 
higher in health physics or a closely related discipline.  Since this is a lead position the state of Alaska 124 
was also asking for 3-4 years of inspection experience.  Ideally an advanced degree in healthcare 125 
physics would be desired to oversee a radiological health program.  If the dental board wanted to 126 
give jurisdiction back to the state, the state could hire someone with less experience who would be 127 
working under someone with more experience. 128 
 129 
The board asked Mr. Jilly his opinion.  Mr. Jilly stated he was neutral about the board keeping 130 
oversight or moving jurisdiction back over to the state.  However, he does feel strongly that the 131 
equipment continues to be inspected.  He stated on the medical inspections it was not just hardware 132 
that was inspected but the personnel and competencies of each person utilizing the equipment were 133 
also looked at.  The personnel were corrected from sloppy safety practices as the personnel in the 134 
medical labs are the ones who are taking multiple images per day and therefore at a higher risk of 135 
unnecessary exposure than a onetime patient. 136 
 137 
Mr. Anderson also expressed to the board that he provides training to dentists and operative staff 138 
for reduction in errors and lack of safety.  The board has expressed frustration because they cannot 139 
find qualified inspectors.  Mr. Anderson stated he does know an individual in Anchorage who is 140 
interested in applying for the position.  He stated the potential applicant has an electrical engineering 141 
degree and has been installing x-ray machines for 30 years in medical offices.  The potential 142 
applicant is aware of all of the safety issues regarding radiation. 143 
 144 



 

4 
 

Dr. Nielsen states the board had previously figured this issue out but were then shot down because 145 
they could not change the radiologic inspector’s application form. Regulation attorney Steve Weaver 146 
had previously addressed this topic and determined the board does not have statutory authority to 147 
have regulations for licensing radiologic inspectors.  Dr. Nielsen states the board was told they did 148 
not have statutory authority to change the form which caused the board frustration.  The board feels 149 
stuck.  Dr. Nielsen stated the board regulations removed the reference to a,  “Health Radiologic 150 
Inspector I,” in 2012 but the form was never changed to reflect that and the board was told they 151 
could not change the form.  Dr. Nielsen would like to look at changing the form so the board may 152 
obtain inspectors qualified to conduct radiological equipment.  Mr. Jilly states there is no need to 153 
require a doctorate level degree for an x-ray inspector.  The board asked if this is something the state 154 
could do and Mr. Jilly said they currently have no position description the board is suggesting.  It 155 
would also require a new full-time employee with fees to dentists to employ the position. 156 
 157 
The board asked Mr. Jilly how long he believes it would take to review the proposed position 158 
requirements for a dental x-ray examiner if the board were to draft them.  Mr. Jilly stated he would 159 
likely be available to review the position at the end of March.  Dr. Nielsen then addressed Mr. 160 
Anderson and asked if his friend were to apply today with the way the current application is written 161 
that he would not qualify? Mr. Anderson stated he believed so but noted the person does have an 162 
electrical engineering degree.  The board proposes to draft changes to the application for a second 163 
opinion regarding the change in application. 164 
 165 
Agenda Item 8 – Investigative Report 166 
 167 
Jasmine Bautista addressed the board and introduced the new Probation Monitor for the healthcare 168 
section of investigations Mr. Billie Homestead.  Jasmine then directed the board to the investigative 169 
report.  From December 06, 2018 through February 7, 2019 investigations opened 2 matters since 170 
the last report, closed 0 matters since the last report and 26 matters remained open. 171 
 172 
Mr. Homestead addressed the board noting there were currently 5 individuals on probation and that 173 
all were in compliance except for 1.  The board wanted to know why the one probationary 174 
individual was not in compliance and it was stated that information would be reviewed by a board 175 
member for compliance.  Once presented to a board member they will make a recommendation for 176 
an action to resolve the issue.  Ms. Bautista stated they were still gathering information at this point 177 
and details couldn’t be given outside of Executive Session. 178 
 179 
Dr. Nielsen asked if it would be appropriate to ask the investigative staff about the new 180 
administration’s proposal to combine all investigative staff on the record?  Ms. Bautista stated that 181 
investigative staff do not have a lot of answers but they will keep the board updated as they know 182 
more.  Greg Francois introduced himself and addressed the boards concerns.  He mentioned 183 
Administrative Order 306 that consolidates all investigators from DCCED, DOL, REV, INS, etc.  184 
There will be a task force developed to implement a procedure of how they will combine 185 
investigative staff.  The investigators will remain but will be combined under the Department of 186 
Law. 187 
 188 
Agenda Item 9 – Public Comment 189 
 190 
During the Investigative Report before going into Executive Session, it was noted by the Chair that 191 
it was time for public comment.  Dr. Logan addressed the board through the chair asking if each 192 



 

5 
 

case was assigned a board member and the board member was recused, shouldn’t the recused board 193 
member stay informed of the case?  Chief Francois noted that investigations needed to keep the 194 
information confidential.  Dr. Logan then asked if the board member was not recused and was 195 
offering professional opinions shouldn’t they be informed of the ongoing status of the case? Chief 196 
Francois replied that the member would know the result at the end.  The investigative process 197 
cannot be contaminated by information but the participating board member would need to recuse 198 
themselves from the final board determination.  The investigative process is very compartmentalized 199 
and the board cannot be tainted with information regarding the case.  The board further discussed 200 
the investigative process and decided to take a break. 201 
 202 
Off the Record: 10:46am 203 
On the Record: 10:55am 204 
 205 
Agenda Item 8 – Investigative Report 206 
 207 
On a motion duly made by Ross, seconded by Nielsen, and approved unanimously, it was 208 
RESOLVED to go in to executive session in accordance with Alaska Statute 44.62.310(c)(3) 209 
for the purpose of discussing investigative matters which by law, municipal charter, or 210 
ordinance are required to be confidential. Board staff to remain during this session. 211 
 212 
Off the record: 10:57 am 213 
On the record:  11:44 am 214 
 215 
Agenda Item 3 – Review and Approve Past Meeting Minutes 216 
 217 
The board reviewed the meeting minutes from the December 7, 2018 Dental Board Meeting.  On 218 
line 272 the regulation left out a medical anesthesiologist.  It was stated this would need to be 219 
amended on the overview of the regulations that were currently out for public comment and not a 220 
change that would be made in the minutes. 221 
 222 
The next question was regarding line 99-100 regarding administration of I.V. Medication.  It was 223 
brought up that the board member does not believe the minutes should include, “The medications 224 
need to be administered under the direct supervision of a sedation permit holder.” The board agreed 225 
this should be taken out of the minutes and the paragraph should end on line 99 after the word, 226 
“regulation.”   227 
 228 
It was noted that there is a misspelling in line 407 that should say take instead of rake.  This spelling 229 
error needs to be corrected.  Line 399 needs to spell out post-graduate year 1 instead of PG1.  Line 230 
487 needs to remove in on board since it was not in quotations or capitalized. 231 
 232 
On a motion duly made by Nielsen, seconded by Scheller, and approved unanimously, it 233 
was RESOLVED to approve the minutes as amended of the December 7, 2018 234 
Teleconference. 235 
 236 
Agenda Item 6 – Ethics Report 237 
 238 
There are no ethic violations or conflicts of interest that need to be reported by the board. 239 
 240 



 

6 
 

Agenda Item 12 – Lunch 241 
 242 
Off the Record: 11:54 am 243 
On the Record:   1:04 pm 244 

Roll Call 245 
 246 

 Those present, constituting a quorum of the board, were: 247 
 248 
  Dr. Paul Silveira, President – Valdez 249 
  Ms. Gail Walden – Wasilla  250 
  Dr. David Nielson – Anchorage  251 
  Ms. Paula Ross – Anchorage 252 
  Dr. Thomas Kovaleski – Chugiak 253 
  Dr. Steven Scheller – Fairbanks 254 
  Dr. Kelly Lucas – Wasilla 255 
  Dr. Dominic Wenzel - Girdwood 256 
                       257 

In attendance from the Division of Corporations, Business & Professional Licensing, 258 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development were: 259 

 260 
  Ms. Tracy Wiard Occupational Licensing Examiner - Juneau 261 
  Ms. Amber Treston, Records and Licensing Supervisor – Juneau 262 
                       Ms. Jasmin Bautista, Investigator – Anchorage 263 
  Mr. Greg Fancois, Investigator – Anchorage 264 
  Mr. Billy Homestead, Probation Monitor - Anchorage 265 
  Ms. Sher Zinn, Regulation Specialist – Juneau – Teleconference 266 
   267 
 Members of the public in attendance: 268 
   269 
  Dr. David Logan – Anchorage  270 

Mr. Daniel Anderson – Radiologic Equipment Inspector – Fairbanks – 271 
Teleconference 272 
The Honorable Judge Pedersen Office of Administrative Hearings – Anchorage 273 

  Mr. Bernard Jilly Chief of Public Health Laboratories – Juneau – Teleconference 274 
  Mr. Stephen Hardin - AAFDO – Tennessee - Teleconference 275 

Mr. John Roberson – AAFDO – Tennessee - Teleconference 276 
 277 
 278 
Agenda Item 13 – Division Update 279 
 280 
Administrative Officer Dumas addressed the board and informed them that they are in the middle 281 
of a renewal cycle currently.  She directed the board to see the revenue and expenditures for the past 282 
7 years up to the 2nd quarter of FY 19.  It was noted that the renewals are completed in odd 283 
numbered years.  So far, total revenue is $59, 572.  Direct Expenditures are $143, 841.  Indirect 284 
Expenditures are calculated at the end of the year but a placeholder average of $94,398 was listed for 285 
Indirect Expenditures.  The boards total expenses totaled $238,239 which is a deficit of $178,667.  286 
The carryforward deficit from FY 18 is $51,984.  This leaves a total deficit of $230,651.  It is 287 



 

7 
 

anticipated that the board will have a revenue in the black at the end of FY 19 once the renewals are 288 
processed and those funds are added to the dental board revenue. 289 
 290 
Agenda Item 11 – Military Experience In lieu of Licensing Requirements 291 
 292 
The board reviewed the statute 08.08.064.  The board does not want to use the statute for a 293 
temporary license.  The board stated they do not offer a temporary license but only an incapacitated 294 
license or a courtesy license.  It was clarified that the reference was for 08.08.064 (a).  The board was 295 
questioning who verifies military training can be a substitute for training, or a component of the 296 
exam, etc.  It was asked if the board would like to clear up the decision regarding military experience 297 
in lieu of training.  There was a discussion regarding the statute and how the board does not want to 298 
give rubber stamp approvals for licensees that may not be qualified.  299 
 300 
On a motion duly made by Ross, seconded by Scheller, and approved unanimously, it was 301 
RESOLVED to go in to executive session in accordance with Alaska Statute 44.62.310(c)(3) 302 
for the purpose of discussing investigative matters which by law, municipal charter, or 303 
ordinance are required to be confidential. Board staff to remain during this session. 304 
 305 
Off the Record at: 1:20 pm 306 
On the Record at:  1:32 pm 307 
 308 
On a motion duly made by Scheller, seconded by Walden, and approved unanimously by a 309 
roll call vote, it was RESOLVED to approve Richard Lauderback’s Dental Application by 310 
Exam Level II.  311 
 312 
The board wanted to note on the record that further military applications would be considered on a 313 
case by case basis.  There was evidence to show that the licensing qualifications have been met but 314 
the board does like to review qualifications on a case by case basis. 315 
 316 
Agenda Item 10 – Regulation Review 317 
 318 
Dr. Nielsen addressed the board and said he would like to discuss a few changes to the regulations.  319 
He informed the board he had gotten a comment from someone that would be considered public 320 
comment and asked the person to draft a letter but they did not.  Regulations Specialist Zinn 321 
stopped Dr. Nielsen and explained that public comment cannot be delivered by a board member.  322 
Public comment must be completed in writing and submitted through the appropriate channels in 323 
the public comment process to be considered.  The board did review the public comments properly 324 
submitted and considered the cost to the public.   325 
 326 
The board reviewed the regulations that were previously out for public comment.  It was noted that 327 
12 AAC 28.015(e)(2)(B) has left out a physician anesthesiologist.  There was a question as to if 328 
licensed medical anesthesiologist was covered under the term, “sedation provider?” Regulations 329 
Specialist Zinn stated that because CRNA was listed then a licensed anesthesiologist would also 330 
need to be listed.  A medical anesthesiologist would not fall under a moderate or deep sedation 331 
permit because an anesthesiologist is a license outside the dental boards jurisdiction.  The board 332 
would need to add licensed anesthesiologist to the current regulations. 333 
 334 



 

8 
 

On a motion duly made by Silveira, seconded by Ross, and approved unanimously, it was 335 
RESOLVED to adopt the regulations amending to add licensed anesthesiologist as an 336 
acceptable 12 AAC 28.015(e)(2)(B), 12 AAC 28.015(j)(2), 12 AAC 28.027(a).  It was also 337 
resolved to approve 12 AAC 28.940(b)(8)(B) as amended with the word, “one,” removed after 338 
the word, “or.”  339 
 340 
The board reviewed the application again and discussed the content to be covered.  They discussed 341 
the course covering implants and sinus grafts and how the course offers 40 hours of CEU’s.  The 342 
board discussed perhaps each course being reviewed individually.  There was discussion of the 343 
course being CERP, PACE, or ADA approved and that would make this course more acceptable to 344 
the board for an approved CEU.  It was also noted that this course is not open to the public dental 345 
community.  346 
 347 
On a motion duly made by Scheller, seconded by Walden, and denied unanimously by a roll 348 
call vote, it was RESOLVED to Deny the BTY Study Club as a board approved continuing 349 
education study group citing 12 AAC 28.410(3) as it does not meet the board approval. 350 
 351 
Agenda Item 15 - PDMP 352 
 353 
Information was provided to the board that there was a compliance rate of 73%, 122.4% increase in 354 
logins from December 2018 through January 2019, there are no significant increases in patient 355 
searches even though logins have drastically increased which was interpreted to mean dentists are 356 
logging in but not checking and there is a -26% change in MME’s prescribed.  The board was also 357 
shown a graph of the numerical data.  It was noted a dentist not in compliance with PDMP would 358 
be a dentist who has a DEA and has not registered with the PDMP program. 359 
 360 
The board discussed the confusion regarding registration and renewal for the PDMP.  Many dentists 361 
are confused about the process and noted they do not get any confirmation that they successfully 362 
registered with the PDMP.  Licensing Supervisor Treston stated a weekly report has been run on the 363 
dental board applicants noting any dentists that have been late coming into compliance. 364 
 365 
The board was to discuss a penalty matrix for non-compliance with PDMP registration.  Due to the 366 
confusion regarding successful registration with the PDMP registration and compliance the board 367 
felt it was hard to do a penalty matrix if people do not know if they successfully registered.  The 368 
board requested to defer the decision until they were able to discuss the penalty matrix issue with the 369 
PDMP Program Coordinator.   The board took a short break. 370 
  371 
Off the record at 2:16 pm 372 
On the record at 3:30 pm 373 
 374 

Roll Call 375 
 376 

Those present, constituting a quorum of the board, were: 377 
 378 
  Dr. Paul Silveira, President – Valdez 379 
  Ms. Gail Walden – Wasilla  380 
  Dr. David Nielson – Anchorage  381 
  Ms. Paula Ross – Anchorage 382 



 

9 
 

  Dr. Thomas Kovaleski – Chugiak 383 
  Dr. Steven Scheller – Fairbanks 384 
  Dr. Kelly Lucas – Wasilla 385 
  Dr. Dominic Wenzel - Girdwood 386 
                       387 

In attendance from the Division of Corporations, Business & Professional Licensing, 388 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development were: 389 

 390 
  Ms. Tracy Wiard Occupational Licensing Examiner - Juneau 391 
  Ms. Amber Treston, Records and Licensing Supervisor – Juneau 392 
                       Ms. Jasmin Bautista, Investigator – Anchorage 393 
  Mr. Greg Fancois, Investigator – Anchorage 394 
  Mr. Billy Homestead, Probation Monitor - Anchorage 395 
  Ms. Sher Zinn, Regulation Specialist – Juneau – Teleconference 396 
 397 
 Members of the public in attendance: 398 
   399 
  Dr. David Logan – Anchorage  400 

Mr. Daniel Anderson – Radiologic Equipment Inspector – Fairbanks – 401 
Teleconference 402 
The Honorable Judge Pedersen Office of Administrative Hearings – Anchorage 403 

  Mr. Bernard Jilly Chief of Public Health Laboratories – Juneau – Teleconference 404 
  Mr. Stephen Hardin - AAFDO – Tennessee - Teleconference 405 

Mr. John Roberson – AAFDO – Tennessee - Teleconference 406 
 407 

 408 
Agenda Item 18 – Board Business 409 
 410 
18e) 2019 Board Meetings: 411 
 412 
The board discussed the option of scheduling upcoming meetings for the remainder of 2019.  It was 413 
decided by the board that a Doodle Poll should be sent out after March 1, 2019 once the new board 414 
members are officially added to the board and the current members whose terms have ended are no 415 
longer on the board.  416 
 417 
18a) Radiologic Inspection Regulations: 418 
 419 
The board would like an update at the next meeting to determine if HSS has hired a radiologic 420 
Equipment Inspector.  They would also like to schedule Mr. Jilly at the next board meeting.  In 421 
addition, that would like to see if they can change the application that the Dental Board currently for 422 
becoming a radiologic inspector.  Dr. Nielsen will send the previous submitted forms regarding 423 
changing the forms but the board would like the state to take over the process of radiologic 424 
inspections. 425 
 426 
18d) New Board Chair: 427 
 428 
A certificate of appreciation was presented to outgoing board chair Paul Silveira and member Paula 429 
Ross.  A certificate of appreciation was mailed to outgoing board member Thomas Kovaleski and 430 



 

10 
 

Mike Moriarity.  The board and staff of CBPL expressed sincere gratitude for the time they spent 431 
working together.   432 
 433 
With the term expirations for the current board chair it was noted that the board would need a new 434 
chair.  Dr. Silveira asked if there were any members currently interested in being the new board 435 
chair?  Paula Ross nominated Dave Nielsen to be the board chair for the next term and outgoing 436 
chair Silveira concurred with the nomination.  There was board discussion regarding the nomination. 437 
 438 
On a motion duly made by Ross, seconded by Scheller, and approved unanimously, it was 439 
RESOLVED to approve Dr. David Nielsen as the State of Alaska Board of Dental 440 
Examiners Chair from 03/01/2019 – 03/01/2021. 441 
 442 
On a motion duly made by Ross, seconded by Scheller, and approved unanimously, it was 443 
RESOLVED to go in to executive session in accordance with Alaska Statute 44.62.310(c)(3) 444 
for the purpose of discussing investigative matters which by law, municipal charter, or 445 
ordinance are required to be confidential. Board staff to remain during this session. 446 
 447 
Off the Record: 2:48 pm 448 
On the Record: 3:01 pm 449 
 450 
Agenda Item 17 – AAFDO 451 
 452 
Mr. Hardin was present via teleconference and was granted permission as a host in Zoom.  He 453 
prepared a power point presentation that explained the origins of the Accreditation Association for 454 
Dental Offices (AAFDO), their mission of patient safety, costs and services provided should the 455 
board elect to utilize AAFDO to conduct inspections dental offices in Alaska that use deep or 456 
moderate sedation. 457 
 458 
AAFDO discussed the need for dental office sedation and anesthesia and the risks associated. About 459 
40% of general dental offices provide some type of sedation or anesthesia and 70% of pediatric 460 
dentists provide sedation or anesthesia.  That combined with a poor response to emergencies and an 461 
increase in patients with challenging conditions leads to potentials for harm in the dental chair.  It is 462 
estimated that a dental patient dies every other day in the US. 463 
 464 
Mr. Hardin discussed what AAFDO would provide customized inspections to the board and the 465 
licensees holding deep and moderate sedation permits in Alaska.  The inspections are available to be 466 
conducted remotely which is a tremendous benefit and cost saving given the unique geographic 467 
characteristics of Alaska.  The inspections would be tailored to follow Alaska Statutes and 468 
Regulations.  Training and credentials would be considered during an inspection as well as readiness 469 
for emergencies and the facility and layout of the equipment.   470 
 471 
The dentists holding moderate and deep sedation permits in the State of Alaska would pay a 472 
$1499.00 fee for the inspection.  The dentists would sign up online and AAFDO would send 473 
inspection preparation materials including mock emergency drills guide.  Once the dentists complete 474 
the pre-inspection preparation they would go back online and schedule the inspection which is 475 
conducted by Zoom.   476 
 477 



 

11 
 

Once the inspection is completed the dentist is issued a certificate of successful completion.  The 478 
State of Alaska Dental Board would get a record of completion and Administrative Expense Offset 479 
Fee.  The state would have expenses for administration of the program.  In addition, every member 480 
who participates in the mock drills is eligible to receive 12 CEU’s.  The process would take place 481 
once every 3 years. 482 
 483 
Dr. Nielsen questioned how much other states are charging for inspections.  Mr. Roberson stated 484 
that the California Board of Dentistry charges $2000.00 for an onsite inspection.  Minnesota and 485 
North Dakota charge about $500.00 per inspection.  Kentucky has a 1-page document for an 486 
inspection.  Mr. Roberson stated if an accrediting agency like JCAHO came in for an inspection it 487 
would cost thousands of dollars. Mr. Roberson also answered the board question regarding 488 
qualifications of instructors.  The instructors are EMT’s, Paramedics, CRNA’s, and other providers 489 
certified to instruct BLS, ACLS and PALS courses. 490 
 491 
18f) Task List: 492 
 493 
The following items are to be added to the task list and e-mailed to the board members upon 494 
completion: 495 
 496 
Complete a Doodle Poll 03/01/2019 to determine next board meeting. 497 
Discuss PDMP and matrix with PDMP Program Coordinator at next meeting.  Send e-mail asking 498 
what kind of verifications applicants receive to show successful completion of PDMP registration.  499 
Investigations case review process at next meeting add to agenda. 500 
Discuss adding specialty licenses at next board meeting.  Add to agenda.  Obtain old statutes and 501 
regulations that had specialty licenses in them. 502 
Schedule Bernard Jilly at next meeting. 503 
Send position description for dental equipment radiologic equipment inspector. 504 
Obtain references from dentists that have used AAFDO for inspections as well as a sample of an 505 
inspection for the board to view.  Ask what capacity for inspections per year is. 506 
 507 
Dr. Nielsen made a motion to adjourn the meeting which was seconded by Paula Ross.  508 
Meeting adjourned at: 4:02 PM. 509 
         510 

   Respectfully Submitted: 511 
        512 
 513 
 514 
       ______________________________ 515 
       Tracy Wiard 516 
       Occupational Licensing Examiner 517 
 518 
       Approved: 519 
 520 
             521 
       David Nielsen, DDS, President 522 
 523 
 524 

Date:__________________________ 525 



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 



 

1 
 

STATE OF ALASKA 1 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY AND 2 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, 4 

BUSINESS & PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 5 
BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 6 

 7 
MINUTES OF MEETING 8 

March 08, 2019 9 
 10 

These DRAFT minutes were prepared by the staff of the Division of Corporations, Business and 11 
Professional Licensing. They have not been reviewed or approved by the Board. 12 

 13 
By authority of AS 08.01.070(2) and AS 08.36.040 and in compliance with the provisions of Article 6 14 
of AS 44.62, a meeting of the Board of Dental Examiners was held March 08, 2019, with the board 15 

via Zoom Videoconferencing. 16 
 17 

The meeting was called to order by Dr. Dave Nielson, President, at 3:03 p.m. 18 
 19 

Agenda Item 1 - Roll Call 20 
 21 

 Those present, constituting a quorum of the board, were: 22 
 23 
  Dr. David Nielson, President – Anchorage 24 
  Ms. Gail Walden, Board Secretary - Wasilla  25 
  Dr. Kelly Lucas –  Wasilla 26 
  Dr. Jesse Hronkin – Wasilla 27 
  Dr. Jonathan Woller – Fairbanks 28 
  Ms. Brittany Dschaak – Naknek 29 
  Ms. Robin Wahto – Anchorage 30 
  Dominic Wenzell – Gridwood – called in at 3:04 p.m. 31 
                       32 

In attendance from the Division of Corporations, Business & Professional Licensing, 33 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development were: 34 

 35 
  Ms. Tracy Wiard Occupational Licensing Examiner - Juneau 36 
  Ms. Sher Zinn, Regulation Specialist – Juneau – Teleconference 37 
   38 
 Members of the public in attendance: 39 
   40 
  Dr. David Logan, Alaska Dental Society – Anchorage  41 
 42 
Agenda Item 2 – Review of Agenda  43 
 44 
Dr. Nielson present the DRAFT agenda for the 03.08.2019 Board Meeting.  The purpose of this 45 
videoconference meeting prior to the regularly scheduled board meeting in April is to develop the 46 
State of Alaska Dental Boards position on SB 68.  In addition, the board would like to discuss 47 
requirements of licensing foreign dental graduates with a 2-year, post-graduate residency.  Dr. 48 



 

2 
 

Nielson asked if there were any requested changes to the agenda.  Gail Walden suggested adding a 49 
public comment period at the end of the meeting for Dr. Logan to make comments from the Alaska 50 
Dental Society.  51 
 52 
On a motion made by Gail Walden, seconded by Dominic Wenzell, and passed 53 
unanimously, it was RESOLVED to approve the agenda with the discussed amendments. 54 
 55 
Agenda Item 3 – Ethics Report 56 
 57 
Dr. Nielson asked if there were any ethics violations or potential conflicts of interest?  It was stated 58 
by Dr. Kelly Lucas that he has a collaborative agreement with fellow board member and Dental 59 
Hygienist Britany Dschaak.  Dr. Lucas stated he does not see a conflict of interest or their 60 
employment relationship impacting board business or decisions.  He stated Ms. Dschaak was very 61 
independent and their working relationship would not affect either persons decision regarding board 62 
business.  He did state SB 68 may affect their collaborative plan but would not likely affect decisions 63 
either of them make regarding board business. 64 
 65 
Brittany Dschaak stated on the record that she has a working relationship and collaborative plan 66 
with fellow board member Dr. Kelly Lucas.  Ms. Dschaak stated that the board business is 67 
completely independent of any work they do together and that their employment arrangement 68 
would not affect board business.  She further emphasized any judgement and decisions made 69 
regarding board business and votes are completely independent of Dr. Lucas. 70 
 71 
Agenda Item 4 -  2 Year Residency for Foreign Dental Graduates 72 
 73 
Dr. Nielson overviewed the history of the board having to deny applicants that have not graduated 74 
from a dental school accredited by CODA.  CODA accreditation only occurs in the US and that 75 
would mean only US dental school graduates would meet the qualification.  The board tried adding a 76 
section to 12 AAC 28.938 allowing applicants who have not graduated from an accredited dental 77 
school but have successfully completed a 2 or more-year CODA accredited post-graduate residency 78 
program to be eligible for licensure.   79 
 80 
It was determined by Department of Law that the board did not have the statutory authority to 81 
make that change.  AS 08.36.110(1)(A) states that the applicant must graduate from a dental school 82 
approved by the board.  The Department of Law states that a dental school and a residency program 83 
are not the same thing. The board cannot accept a CODA accredited residency in lieu of a dental 84 
school approved by the board.  It was recommended a statute change or regulation change be made 85 
to qualify applicants who have not graduated from a CODA accredited dental school. 86 
 87 
Dr. Nielson stated that the board should or withdraw the suggested changes to 12 AAC 28.938 from 88 
the regulations project as long as the board lacks authority anyways.  Previous concerns with giving a 89 
general practice license to a graduate of a specialty program in the US who never went to a US 90 
dental school were raised again.  The reason being Alaska does not have a specialty license that 91 
restricts practice to the specialty and a licensee could perform procedures they were not trained in 92 
the US to perform. The board thought it would be best to revisit this when they discuss bringing 93 
back specialty licenses.  Dr. Nielson suggested complete removal of the 2-year residency requirement 94 
from current regulations projects. 95 
 96 



 

3 
 

On a motion made by Gail Walden, seconded by Dominic Wenzell, and passed 97 
unanimously, it was RESOLVED to withdraw any changes from 12 AAC 28.938 from the 98 
regulation project. 99 
 100 
Agenda Item 5 -  SB 68 101 
 102 
Dr. Nielson brought SB 68 to the board’s attention.  He stated it may be nice to draft a letter of the 103 
board’s stance on the bill to present to the legislature if needed.  He stated the bill would get rid of 104 
the current collaborative plan, allow for advanced dental hygienists to perform some functions 105 
independently and bill for insurance. 106 
 107 
The board reviewed SB 68 and discussed the proposed bill.  Ms. Dschaak stated a concern of hers 108 
regarded the requirement of practice to be a section of the population that is not considered 109 
underserved as determined by the dental board.  She stated that may not allow her to practice if her 110 
location was considered under served.  With her current collaborative plan with a licensed dentist 111 
she has the option to practice independently within the agreed scope of practice.  Ms. Walden stated 112 
the State of Alaska previously had a list of recognized areas considered underserved.  Dr. Nielson 113 
stated more options would be preferred over just one option to provide the greatest access to dental 114 
care possible. 115 
 116 
Dr. Woller stated that he spoke to some dental hygienists regarding the bill and the sponsor of the 117 
bill thought it would be best to replace the collaborative agreement with an advanced level dental 118 
hygiene license.  Dr. Woller stated that the sponsor of the bill and hygienists thought the dental 119 
board would bristle against having both a collaborative agreement and an advanced dental hygiene 120 
license.  Dr. Woller stated the dentists he spoke with stated that they would like to have the options 121 
for an advanced level dental hygiene license in addition to a collaborative plan.  122 
 123 
Dr. Wenzell stated that this bill is basically replacing a collaborative agreement with an independent 124 
hygienist.  As a board member he did not want to replace the collaborative agreement with 125 
independent hygienists but would like to see both license types in place.  Dr. Nielson stated 126 
removing the collaborative agreement could affect certain populations in a negative way if the area 127 
was not determined to be an underserved portion of the population. 128 
 129 
Dr. Nielson stated there are a few items he has an issue with.  He stated there are many procedures 130 
performed by dental hygienists that are done under general supervision and local anesthesia is one of 131 
them.  He wanted the boards input about this as administration of local anesthesia may require a 132 
health evaluation and may be best left under general supervision.  He also stated the atraumatic 133 
restorative technique (ART) may require additional training.  Ms. Walden stated that (ART) is not 134 
part of a dental hygiene curriculum as far as she as aware.   135 
 136 
Dr. Woller stated he did some research on other states that allow dental hygienists to perform 137 
atraumatic restorative technique (ART) and found that Kansas is the only state allowing the 138 
technique under a level III permit that requires a certain number of clinical hours of practice and 139 
completion of an 18-hour board approved course.  The other issue Dr. Woller noted was the 140 
application of silver diamine fluoride.  He stated when you combine these 2 modalities of treatment 141 
(ART) and (SDF) it brings forth the question if dental hygienists will begin diagnosing and treating 142 
dental carries.  He stated that this seems to be beyond the scope of any dental hygiene practice.  He 143 



 

4 
 

stated there is a public health benefit to having a dentist make the diagnosis to prevent miss-144 
treatment and misdiagnosis of dental carries. 145 
 146 
Dr. Nielson asked the board to come to a consensus of what the dental hygienists would be allowed 147 
to do with the advanced practice license.  Dr. Wenzell suggested the board remove local anesthesia, 148 
atraumatic restorative technique and silver diamine fluoride from the allowable procedures AS 149 
08.32.115(a)(3), (9) and (11).  Dr. Woller recommended adding a definition under radiographs or a 150 
defined type of radiograph under AS 08.32.115(a)(7).  This would be to eliminate the use of cone 151 
beam or 3-dimensional imaging as that is not in the scope of practice.  Ms. Walden and Dr. Nielson 152 
stated the population served by this license type would be underserved and there would be no cone 153 
beam. 154 
 155 
Regulations specialist Zinn addressed the board and stated the current collaborative agreement 156 
08.32.115 (9) allows the dental hygienist to administer local anesthesia.  Dr. Nielson stated item (9) is 157 
only allowed after being authorized by the dentist with whom the collaborative agreement is with 158 
and an advanced dental hygiene license would not require approval from a dentist.  Dr. Nielson 159 
states the dentist has evaluated the patient prior to approving the hygienist to administer local 160 
anesthesia. 161 
 162 
After further discussion Dr. Nielson believed the board wanted to keep the collaborative agreements 163 
between dentists and hygienists and add the advanced dental hygiene license.  Ms. Walden stated 164 
that the training of dental hygienists is more than adequate to treat syncope and administer local 165 
anesthetic.  Ms. Walden believed the biggest drawback would be atraumatic restorative function and 166 
that should require additional training. 167 
 168 
Dr. Nielson stated the market would best determine if a collaborative plan or advanced dental 169 
hygienist would meet the needs to the communities being served.  Ms. Dschaak stated that having a 170 
hygienist place silver diamine fluoride could be advantageous in more rural communities with home 171 
bound or patients or other underserved, immobile patients where dental visits are rare.  She 172 
approves removal of AS 08.32.115(b)(7) if the collaborative plans remain in place. 173 
 174 
Regulations specialist Zinn addressed the board before moving on to public comment.  She noted 175 
possible contradictory information on page 4 of the bill AS 08.32.115(d)(1) stating services could be 176 
limited to preventative and not comprehensive.  Ms. Zinn wanted to know if there were any 177 
procedures listed that would be considered comprehensive?  Board members stated atraumatic 178 
restorative technique and silver diamine fluoride would be considered comprehensive treatment.  179 
Dr. Woller stated that nonsurgical periodontal therapy was also not preventative.  It was suggested 180 
that preventative phraseology be removed from AS 08.32.115 (d)(1) 181 
 182 
Agenda Item 6 -  Public Comment 183 
 184 
Dr. Logan addressed the board and stated that the Alaska Dental Society is still formulating a 185 
position regarding SB 68.  He was interested to listen to the boards discussion regarding 186 
administration of local anesthetic as that hasn’t been discussed in depth by the Alaska Dental Society 187 
at this point.  Dr. Logan stated he has not formulated an opinion now. 188 
 189 



 

5 
 

Dr. Nielsen felt he understood the position of the board.  He stated he would draft a letter to 190 
present to the board for a vote.  He would then submit the letter to the legislature in case any of the 191 
members are asked to provide testimony regarding SB 68. 192 
 193 
There was a recap and Dr. Nielson stated the board would like to see some extra training if the 194 
hygienists were going to provide atraumatic restorative technique.  The silver diamine fluoride may 195 
be okay if the word preventative in AS 08.32.115(d)(1) was replaced with different wording.  Dr. 196 
Woller believed it should mirror the collaborative agreement and the wording should be within the 197 
scope of practice.  Dr. Lucas wanted to make sure this bill would not remove collaborative 198 
agreements per which the board agreed. 199 
 200 
Dr. Woller made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Gail Walden seconded.  There were no 201 
objections.  Meeting adjourned at 4:05 p.m. 202 
 203 
 204 
         205 

   Respectfully Submitted: 206 
        207 
 208 
 209 
       __________________________ 210 
       Tracy Wiard 211 
       Occupational Licensing Examiner 212 
 213 
       Approved: 214 
 215 
 216 
 217 
             218 
       David Nielson, DDS, President 219 
 220 
       Date:______________________ 221 
 222 



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 



Ethics Report 















Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 



Board Review of Applications 



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

I,      , move that the Alaska State Board of Dental 

Examiners enter into executive session in accordance with AS 44.62.310(c), and 

Alaska Constitutional Right to Privacy Provisions, for the purpose of discussing  

            

 

Board staff member(s)          to remain 

during the session. 

Off record:     
On record:     

 
 
 
Authority: AS 44.62.310(c), Government meetings public 
 

The following subjects may be considered in executive session: 
 

• matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 
adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 

 
• subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 

person, provided the person may request a public discussion; 
 

• matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required 
to be confidential; 

 
• matters involving consideration of government records that by law are 

not subject to public disclosure. 
 



Agenda Item #__________ Topic: _________________________ 

Board of Dental Examiners 

Meeting Date: ____________________ 

Board Member 1st/
2nd 

Yes No Abstain Comments 

David Nielson, DDS 
Gail Walden, RDH 
Steven Scheller, DDS 
Brittany Dschaak, RDH 
Jesse Hronkin, DDS 
Jonathan Woller, DMD 
Kelly Lucas, DDS 
Dominic Wenzell, DMD 
Robin Wahto, Public 

Motion: 



Break



Specialty Licenses 



From: Hartwig, Gianna
To: Treston, Amber M (CED); Boards and Commissions (GOV sponsored)
Cc: Wiard, Tracy L (CED)
Subject: RE: Board of Dental Examiners Meeting March 8th
Date: Thursday, April 4, 2019 10:19:57 AM
Attachments: Specialty Advertising Letter.docx

Hello Ms. Treston,
 
Thank you for your response and insight. I have attached a letter regarding dental specialties for the

Board to consider during its April 15th teleconference. I believe I will be joining the Zoom meeting as
well to answer any questions and to participate.
Thank you for your time,
Gianna
 

From: Treston, Amber M (CED) <amber.treston@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 7, 2019 6:00 PM
To: Boards and Commissions (GOV sponsored) <boards@alaska.gov>; Hartwig, Gianna
<ghartwig@aaortho.org>
Cc: Wiard, Tracy L (CED) <tracy.wiard@alaska.gov>
Subject: RE: Board of Dental Examiners Meeting March 8th
 
Ms. Hartwig,
 
The board briefly discussed bringing back dental specialty licenses in the February meeting. They
requested that this be added to the next quarterly board meeting, which is scheduled for Monday,

April 15th. The brief teleconference that is scheduled for tomorrow afternoon is to allow the board
to discuss SB68. They will not be discussing specialty licensing tomorrow.
 
If you have additional questions please feel free to contact me, or the Occupational Licensing
Examiner for the Board of Dental Examiners, Tracy Wiard.
 
Respectfully,
 
 
 
Amber Treston
Records and Licensing Supervisor
(907)465-1074
 
Alaska State Medical Board
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/StateMedicalBoard.aspx
 
Board of Dental Examiners
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardofDentalExaminers.aspx
 

mailto:ghartwig@aaortho.org
mailto:amber.treston@alaska.gov
mailto:boards@alaska.gov
mailto:tracy.wiard@alaska.gov
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/StateMedicalBoard.aspx
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/BoardofDentalExaminers.aspx


From: Boards and Commissions (GOV sponsored) <boards@alaska.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, March 07, 2019 2:16 PM
To: Hartwig, Gianna <ghartwig@aaortho.org>
Cc: Treston, Amber M (CED) <amber.treston@alaska.gov>
Subject: RE: Board of Dental Examiners Meeting March 8th
 
Gianna,
 
Please reach out to Amber Treston regarding this question.

Thanks,
 
Courtney Enright
Boards and Commissions Specialist
Governor Michael J. Dunleavy
Courtney.Enright@alaska.gov
Office: (907) 269-0006
 

From: Hartwig, Gianna <ghartwig@aaortho.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2019 11:01 AM
To: Boards and Commissions (GOV sponsored) <boards@alaska.gov>
Subject: Board of Dental Examiners Meeting March 8th
 
Hello,
 
I noticed from the February draft minutes that the Board discussed adding specialty licenses at next
board meeting. Has this item been officially placed on the agenda?
 
Thank you,
Gianna
 
Gianna Hartwig
Regional State Affairs Coordinator
American Association of Orthodontists
314.292.6527 Direct
ghartwig@aaortho.org

      
 

mailto:boards@alaska.gov
mailto:ghartwig@aaortho.org
mailto:amber.treston@alaska.gov
mailto:Courtney.Enright@alaska.gov
mailto:ghartwig@aaortho.org
mailto:boards@alaska.gov
mailto:ghartwig@aaortho.org


Alaska Board of Dental Examiners 
333 Willoughby Ave, 9th Floor 
State Office building 
Juneau, AK 99801-1770 
 
VIA E-MAIL: amber.treston@alaska.gov 
 
Dear Ms. Treston and Members of the Alaska Board of Dental Examiners,  
 
I write on behalf of the American Association of Orthodontists (AAO).  The 
AAO is the world’s oldest and largest dental specialty organization, created in 
1900.  It represents more than 19,000 orthodontists throughout the United 
States, Canada, and abroad.  AAO member orthodontists have successfully 
completed an accredited orthodontic residency program, after previously 
graduating from dental school.  As a professional organization, the AAO is 
dedicated to, among other goals: (a) ethically advancing the art and science of 
orthodontics and dentofacial orthopedics worldwide; (b) improving the health 
of the public by promoting quality orthodontic care, the importance of overall 
oral healthcare, and advocating for the public interest; and (c) educating the 
public about the benefits of orthodontic treatment and the educational 
qualifications of orthodontic specialists. 
 
We are submitting this letter to make some preliminary comments on dental 
specialties and advertising.  
 
The AAO supports regulations that require those who are advertising as 
“specialists” to have successfully completed a post-doctoral program in a 
specialty area of dentistry consisting of at least two full-time years and which 
is accredited by an accreditation agency that is recognized by the U.S. 
Department of Education ( i.e. CODA). CODA is the only nationally-
recognized accrediting body for dentistry and the related dental fields, 
receiving its accreditation authority from the acceptance of all stakeholders 
within the dental community and recognition by the United States Department 
of Education. The AAO is opposed to dentists with less education and training 
being able to advertise on the same level or in the same manner or with 
similar words used to describe those who have graduated from accredited 
programs that receive accreditation from an agency recognized by the U.S 
Department of Education (U.S. DOE), as the AAO believes it is not in the best 
interest of patients’ health and safety. 
 
An accreditation standard backed by the U.S. DOE best assures Alaska 
citizens that an individual who truthfully holds himself or herself out as a 
specialist has met high standards for education and training. Allowing a 
dentist to advertise as a "specialist" without completing a multi-year 



  

accredited program backed by the U.S. DOE, risks diluting Alaska’s "specialty" laws and allowing 
certain providers, who do not have years of supervised clinical and didactic training and/or who have 
not satisfied extensive criterion, to advertise on par with those providers who have long-term, 
comprehensive education and training through U.S. DOE accredited programs. Such dilution 
threatens the health and safety of Alaska patients by obscuring important distinctions between dental 
professionals as well as their respective educational and training backgrounds. As such, the AAO 
believes that graduating from an U.S. DOE accredited educational program should be required under 
Alaska specialty laws. 
 
Thank you for your work on this issue and your consideration of these comments.  Please do not 
hesitate to contact me at ghartwig@aaortho.org or 314-292-6527if you have any questions 
regarding the aforementioned issues.  
 
Sincerely, 
Gianna  
 
 
Gianna Hartwig 
Regional State Affairs Coordinator 

mailto:ghartwig@aaortho.org




Agenda Item #__________ Topic: _________________________ 

Board of Dental Examiners 

Meeting Date: ____________________ 

Board Member 1st/
2nd 

Yes No Abstain Comments 

David Nielson, DDS 
Gail Walden, RDH 
Steven Scheller, DDS 
Brittany Dschaak, RDH 
Jesse Hronkin, DDS 
Jonathan Woller, DMD 
Kelly Lucas, DDS 
Dominic Wenzell, DMD 
Robin Wahto, Public 

Motion: 



Regulations Review 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  1 

Chapter 28.  Board of Dental Examiners. 

 
12 AAC 28.010(e)(5)(B) is amended to read: 

(B) provide documentation that at least 20 of the 50 anesthesia or deep 

sedation cases were individually managed patients younger than 13 years of age. 

(Eff. 4/10/70, Register 34; am 5/29/98, Register 146; am 6/24/2012, Register 202; am 

12/15/2013, Register 208; am 4/14/2018, Register 226; am 12/9/2018, Register 228; am 

____/____/_____, Register ____) 

Authority: AS 08.01.065  AS 08.36.100  AS 08.36.234 

  AS 08.36.070  AS 08.36.110  AS 08.36.250 

 

12 AAC 28.015(e)(1)(B) is amended to read: 

(B) a board-approved continuing education course in sedation consistent 

with the Guidelines for Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental 

Students, adopted by reference in (A) of this paragraph, and required under 12 AAC 

28.026; the course must consist of a minimum of 60 hours of instruction plus 

administration of sedation for at least 20 individually managed patients per participant to 

establish competency and clinical experience in moderate sedation and management of a 

compromised airway; and 

 

12 AAC 28.015(e)(2)(A) is amended to read: 

(A) provide proof that the applicant completed an additional 30 hours of  

board-approved coursework in pediatric moderate sedation required under 12 AAC 

28.027; and   



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  2 

 

12 AAC 28.015(e)(2)(B) is amended to read: 

(B) provide proof of administration of sedation for at least 20 individually  

managed patients younger than 13 years of age while under the supervision of a 

sedation provider holding a current moderate or deep sedation permit in good 

standing for patients under 13 years of age or an anesthesiologist or certified 

registered nurse anesthetist licensed in this state or another jurisdiction. 

 

12 AAC 28.015(f) is amended to read: 

 (f) In addition to meeting the requirements of (d) and (g) of this section, an applicant for 

an initial permit to administer moderate or minimal sedation only to patients who are younger 

than 13 years of age under this section must provide proof of administration of sedation for at 

least 20 individually managed patients younger than 13 years of age to establish competency and 

clinical experience in management of a comprised airway, and provide documentation that the 

applicant has completed 

  [(1)] a Commission on Dental Accreditation (CODA) accredited residency in 

pediatric dentistry[; OR 

  (2) AT LEAST 60 HOURS OF CONTINUING EDUCATION COURSEWORK 

IN PEDIATRIC MODERATE SEDATION APPROVED BY THE BOARD]. 

 

12 AAC 28.015(h)(5)(B) is amended to read: 

(B) provide documentation that at least 10 of the 25 moderate sedation  

cases were individually managed patients younger than 13 years of age. 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  3 

 

12 AAC 28.015(j)(1) is amended to read: 

(1) provide proof of an additional 30 hours of board-approved continuing  

education in pediatric moderate sedation required under 12 AAC 28.027; and 

 

12 AAC 28.015(j)(2) is amended to read: 

  (2) provide proof of administration of sedation for at least 20 individually 

managed patients younger than 13 years of age while under the supervision of a sedation 

provider holding a current moderate or deep sedation permit in good standing for patients 

under 13 years of age or an anesthesiologist or certified registered nurse anesthetist 

licensed in this state or another jurisdiction. 

(Eff. 4/14/2018, Register 226; am 12/9/2018, Register 228; am ____/____/_____, Register ____) 

Authority: AS 08.01.065  AS 08.36.100  AS 08.36.234 

  AS 08.36.070  AS 08.36.110  AS 08.36.250 

 

12 AAC 28 is amended by adding new sections in Article 1 to read: 

 12 AAC 28.025. Board approval of coursework or continuing education in moderate 

sedation, or minimal sedation of patients younger than 13 years of age. The board may upon 

its own motion or upon the request of any interested person, approve coursework required under 

12 AAC 28.015(e)(2)(A) or continuing education required under 12 AAC 28.015(e)(1)(B) or 

(j)(1) upon receipt of  

(1) a completed form provided by the department that includes the name of the  

college or university providing the course, or if the course is completed through a continuing 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  4 

education course, the name of the sponsor, accredited program and faculty member presenting 

the course; 

(2) a course outline that verifies inclusion of the subjects and procedures required  

under 

(A) 12 AAC 28.026 if certification to administer moderate sedation only  

for patients 13 years of age and older is sought; and 

(B) 12 AAC 28.027 if certification to administer moderate or minimal  

sedation for patients younger than 13 years of age is sought; and 

(3) an explanation of the evaluation procedures used to determine successful  

completion of the course.  (Eff. ____/____/_____, Register _____) 

Authority: AS 08.36.070      

   

 12 AAC 28.026. Requirements for documentation of training, or a continuing 

education course in moderate sedation for patients 13 years of age and older. (a) 

Documentation of training or a continuing education course required under 12 AAC 

28.015(e)(1)(B) for an initial permit in moderate sedation only for patients 13 years of age and 

older must include 

(1) a certification of competence in moderate sedation techniques; 

(2) a certification of competence in rescuing patients from a deeper level of  

sedation than intended, including managing the airway, intravascular or intraosseous access, and  

reversal medications; 

(3) a provision by the course director or faculty of additional clinical experience if  

participant competency has not been achieved in the time allotted; and 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  5 

 

(4) records of instruction and clinical experience that are maintained and available  

for participant review, including the number of patients managed by each participant in each 

modality or route. 

 (b) To receive board approval a continuing education course required under 12 AAC 

28.015(e)(1)(B) for an initial permit in moderate sedation for patients 13 years of age and older 

must be certified by the American Dental Association (ADA) Continuing Education Recognition 

Program (CERP), or the Academy of General Dentistry (AGD) Program Approval for 

Continuing Education (PACE).  (Eff. ____/____/_____, Register _____) 

Authority:  AS 08.36.070  

 

 12 AAC 28.027. Requirements for coursework or continuing education in moderate 

sedation and minimal sedation for patients younger than 13 years of age. To receive board 

approval for coursework required under 12 AAC 28.015(e)(2)(A) or continuing education under 

12 AAC 28.015(j)(1), the coursework or continuing education must be certified by the American 

Dental Association (ADA) Continuing Education Recognition Program (CERP), the Academy of 

General Dentistry (AGD) Program Approval for Continuing Education (PACE), or the American 

Academy of Pediatric Dentistry (AAPD), or offered by other organizations approved by the 

board including, the American Dental Society of Anesthesiology (ADSA), and the Society for 

Pediatric Sedation (SPS).  Course titles and outlines must be provided to the board and must 

include the following subject areas: 

(1) physical, psychological, and social child development, and age-appropriate  

behavior response; 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  6 

(2) principles and objectives of sedation and anesthesia as behavior  

guidance techniques in children, and indication and contraindications for sedatives and their use; 

(3) prevention, recognition, treatment, and management of pharmacological  

related emergencies in pediatric patients, and rescuing a child from a deeper level of sedation 

than intended; 

(4) pre-operative evaluation and risk assessment of the pediatric patient; 

(5) assessing the effects of pharmacologic agents on the pediatric patient; 

(6) at least three hours of hands-on simulated airway management specific to the  

pediatric patient; 

(7) pediatric patient monitoring; and 

(8) recovery room management and pediatric post-operative appraisal and follow- 

up.  (Eff. ____/____/_____, Register ____) 

Authority: AS 08.36.070  

 

12 AAC 28.360 is amended to read: 

 12 AAC 28.360. Registry. The board will maintain a registry of all [BOARD  

APPROVED COURSES OF INSTRUCTION AND ALL] dental hygienists certified to 

administer local anesthetic agents or nitrous oxide sedation. (Eff. 5/31/81, Register 78; am 

4/14/2018, Register 226; am ____/____/_____, Register ____) 

Authority: AS 08.32.110  AS 08.36.070 

 

12 AAC 28.925(a)(2) is amended to read: 

  (2) pays the renewal fee established in 12 AAC 02.190(a)(4) and (10) and (b)(6), 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  7 

(10), and (13) [12 AAC 02.190(a)(4), (a)(8), (b)(5), (b)(6), AND (b)(14)], as applicable; and 

(Eff. 1/15/2003, Register 165; am 12/15/2013, Register 208; am ____/____/_____, Register 

_____) 

Authority: AS 08.32.081  AS 08.36.070  AS 08.36.250 

 

12 AAC 28.937(c)(4)(B) is amended to read: 

(B) that the applicant has been licensed for five years or more and in 

active clinical practice documenting at least 2,500 hours for five years immediately 

preceding the date of application; 

 

12 AAC 28.937(c)(7) is amended to read: 

  (7) affidavits from three licensed dentists or licensed dental hygienists stating the 

applicant has been licensed for five years or more and in active clinical practice documenting 

at least 2,500 hours during the five years immediately preceding the date of application. 

 (Eff. 1/22/2004, Register 169; am 5/5/2006, Register 178; am 12/5/2009, Register 192; am 

12/15/2013, Register 208; am 3/11/2016, Register 217; am ____/____/_____, Register _____) 

 

Authority: AS 08.32.014  AS 08.32.070  AS 08.36.070 

  AS 08.32.030 

 

12 AAC 28.940(b)(8)(B)(vi) is amended to read: 

(vi) patient based operative examination that includes one class II 

posterior alloy or [AND ONE] composite procedure, and one additional 



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  8 

operative procedure, either anterior class III or posterior class II; or 

(Eff. 1/28/2000, Register 153; am 8/15/2001, Register 159; am 1/15/2003, Register 165; am 

1/22/2004, Register 169; am 4/27/2007, Register 182; am 10/19/2008, Register 188; am  

12/2/2012, Register 204; am 12/15/2013, Register 208; am 9/26/2018, Register 227; am 

____/____/_____, Register ____) 

Authority: AS 08.36.070  AS 08.36.110 

 

12 AAC 28.951(c)(6)(B) is amended to read: 

(B) the applicant has been licensed for five years or more and in active 

clinical practice documenting at least 5,000 hours; 

 

12 AAC 28.951(c)(11) is amended to read: 

  (11) affidavits from three licensed dentists documenting the applicant has been 

licensed for five years or more and in active clinical practice for at least 5,000 hours during the 

five years immediately preceding the date of application; 

(Eff. 2/18/93, Register 125; am 2/4/94, Register 129; am 2/22/98, Register 145; am 1/28/2000, 

Register 153; am 8/15/2001, Register 159; am 1/22/2004, Register 169; am 5/5/2006, Register 

178; am 10/19/2008, Register 188; am 12/15/2013, Register 208; am 3/11/2016, Register 217; 

am 9/26/2018, Register 227; am ____/____/_____, Register _____) 

Authority:  AS 08.36.070  AS 08.36.110  AS 08.36.234 

 

12 AAC 28.955(a) is amended to read: 

(a) The board will issue a courtesy license to practice dentistry or dental hygiene to a  



Register _____, _______ 2019  PROFESSIONAL REGULATIONS 
 

DOL#2018201025.001  9 

nonresident for only a limited purpose that is approved by the board under (b) of this section to 

an applicant who meets the requirements of this section. The board will specify the limitations on  

scope of the approved practice and duration of the courtesy license. A courtesy license does not 

authorize the licensee to practice dentistry or dental hygiene outside the limited purpose that is 

specified on the courtesy license. 

  (Eff. 12/24/2006, Register 180; am 12/15/2013, Register 208; am ____/____/_____, Register 

____) 

Authority: AS 08.01.062  AS 08.32.165  AS 08.36.234 

  AS 08.32.160  AS 08.36.110  AS 08.36.315  

 

 



Sedation/anesthesia permits- For sedation permits that should expire after two years, use the language in (g)(3) for an 
example. 

I added “lapses” to (2) because we have had dentists renew their sedation permits, but not their dental licenses. 

12 AAC 28.010 

(g) A permit to administer deep sedation and general anesthesia 

   (1) will be renewed when the dentist’s license to practice is renewed if the dentist demonstrates continued 
compliance with AS 08.36 and this chapter;  

   (2) lapses or expires on the date the dentist’s license lapses or expires; 

        (3) may be reinstated if the permit has lapsed at least 60 days but less than two years if the applicant submits 

            (A) a complete renewal application on a form provided by the department; 

            (C) the applicable renewal fee established in 12 AAC 02.190; 

            (B) evidence of continuing education and documentation of sedation cases required by 12 AAC 
28.010(e)(1),(2),(3), and (5), as applicable. 

            

CBPL definitions- 

Lapsed- means the person may still renew or reinstate a license up to a maximum time determined by statute or 
regulation.  

Expired- means the person may not renew or reinstate because the permit or license lapse date has exceeded the 
maximum time period for reinstatement of a lapsed license. Therefore, they must reapply for a new license.        

 

Moderate/minimal sedation permit reinstatement regulations. 

12 AAC 28.015 

(l) A permit to administer moderate or minimal sedation under this section 

(1) will be renewed when the dentist's license to practice is renewed if the dentist demonstrates continued 
compliance with AS 08.36 and this chapter; and 

(2) lapses or expires on the date the dentist's license lapses or expires; 

         (3) may be reinstated if the permit has lapsed at least 60 days but less than two years if the applicant submits  

            (A) a complete renewal application on a form provided by the department; 

            (B) the applicable renewal fee established in 12 AAC 02.190; 

            (C) evidence of continuing education and documentation of sedation cases required by 12 AAC 
28.015(h)(1),(2),(3), and (5), as applicable. 

     

Dental hygienist restorative function: 

12 AAC 28.400. CONTINUING EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS FOR DENTISTRY AND DENTAL HYGIENISTS LICENSEES. This section will 
explain what type of CE’s are required. 

New section (c), moving existing (c) and (d) to (d) and (e). 



    (c) An applicant for renewal of a dental hygienist restorative function endorsement under 12 AAC 28.780 shall 
submit evidence of continued competence by documenting at least two hours of continuing education relating to 
materials or techniques used for the restoration of teeth. 

Also add the renewal requirements under 12 AAC 28.780. RENEWAL OF DENTAL HYGIENIST’S RESTORATIVE FUNCTION LICENSE 
ENDORSEMENT. (There are currently 62 active hygienist restorative function endorsements, requiring 6 CE audits for this 
program.) 

Example- 

12 AAC 28.780. RENEWAL OF DENTAL HYGIENIST’S RESTORATIVE FUNCTION LICENSE ENDORSEMENT. (a) A dental 
hygienist’s endorsement to perform restorative functions lapses or expires on the date the dental hygienist’s license 
lapses or expires.  
(b) A dental hygienist’s endorsement to perform restorative functions will be renewed when the dental hygienist’s 
license to practice is renewed.  
(c) The board will maintain a registry of dental hygienists who have an endorsement under AS 08.32.085 and 12 AAC 
28.750 to perform restorative functions. 

(d) An applicant for renewal of a dental hygienist endorsement to perform restorative functions must submit 

    (1) a complete renewal form; 

    (2) the applicable renewal fee established in 12 AAC 02.190; 

    (3) documentation of successful completion of two hours of continuing education required under 12 AAC 28.400(c). 

 

 

Assistants- If you want to add CE for renewal of a restorative function endorsement for Assistants- add to 12 AAC 
28.880. RENEWAL OF DENTAL ASSISTANT’S RESTORATIVE FUNCTION CERTIFICATE. 

There are currently 20 assistant restorative function certificates, requiring 2 CE audits. 

If you want to limit reinstatement to 2 years, it would go under this same section. 

Example- 

12 AAC 28.880. RENEWAL OF DENTAL ASSISTANT’S RESTORATIVE FUNCTION CERTIFICATE. (a) A dental assistant’s 
restorative function certificate must be renewed biennially on or before February 28 of odd-numbered years. In order to 
renew a certificate to perform restorative function, a dental assistant must submit to the department [A]  
    (1) a completed application for renewal on a form provided by the department;  
    (2) the $60 certificate renewal fee; and 
    (3) documentation of completion of two hours of continuing education required under (b) of this section.  
 
  (b) An applicant for renewal of a dental assistant restorative function certificate shall complete two hours of 
approved continuing education under 12 AAC28.410(a) relating to materials or techniques used for the restoration of 
teeth. 

 
(b) (c) The board will maintain a registry of dental assistants certified under AS 08.36.344 and 12 AAC 28.850 to perform 
restorative functions. 

  (d) A dental assistant restorative function certificate may not be renewed if the certificate has lapsed for two years 
or more. 



Agenda Item #__________ Topic: _________________________ 

Board of Dental Examiners 

Meeting Date: ____________________ 

Board Member 1st/
2nd 

Yes No Abstain Comments 

David Nielson, DDS 
Gail Walden, RDH 
Steven Scheller, DDS 
Brittany Dschaak, RDH 
Jesse Hronkin, DDS 
Jonathan Woller, DMD 
Kelly Lucas, DDS 
Dominic Wenzell, DMD 
Robin Wahto, Public 

Motion: 



Investigation and Probation Report











EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTION 
 

I,      , move that the Alaska State Board of Dental 

Examiners enter into executive session in accordance with AS 44.62.310(c), and 

Alaska Constitutional Right to Privacy Provisions, for the purpose of discussing  

            

 

Board staff member(s)          to remain 

during the session. 

Off record:     
On record:     

 
 
 
Authority: AS 44.62.310(c), Government meetings public 
 

The following subjects may be considered in executive session: 
 

• matters, the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an 
adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 

 
• subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any 

person, provided the person may request a public discussion; 
 

• matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required 
to be confidential; 

 
• matters involving consideration of government records that by law are 

not subject to public disclosure. 
 



Overview of the Board and Division (Investigation Unit) functions: 

 
The Board or Commission’s primary function is that of a regulatory body that makes licensure 
decisions and monitors compliance with the statute and regulations governing the profession.  
The professional statutes and regulations are found in centralized statutes of Title 8, and also in 
the statutes and regulations specific to each board, commission, or occupational area. 
 
Complaints: 
All written complaints, or reports, alleging a violation of statute or regulations should provide a 
specific and detailed summary of the complaint; the complainant must include any 
documentation or witnesses they feel supports the allegation of wrongdoing and, in healthcare 
complaints, a release for patient records.   
 
Upon receipt, the complaint and evidence are reviewed by investigators to ensure jurisdiction 
over the person named in the complaint and the alleged violation by that person.  This review 
takes into account, informal guidelines established by the Board or Commission, and the 
statutes and regulations of that specific practice area.  If the complaint does not appear to 
allege a violation that is within the Board's jurisdiction, the Division may close the complaint.  If 
the complaint does center on a violation that is within the Board's jurisdiction, an initial letter 
may be sent to the licensee against whom the complaint is filed.  This letter provides notice of 
the complaint and allegations and may request records, an interview, or other response by the 
licensee.  
 
Complaints that present an immediate threat to public safety are given priority; however, all 
complaints are investigated as quickly as possible.  The steps taken in the investigation are 
determined on a case by case basis by the specifics of the allegations. This portion of the 
investigative process may be quite lengthy and may require additional information or evidence 
from the complainant, licensee, businesses, other governmental agencies or state boards, 
witnesses, or related parties.   
 
Inquiry and Investigation: 
The Investigators conduct an inquiry into the complaint; generally, the steps for an inquiry 
include the following: 
 

• obtaining records, documentation and evidence related to the complaint; 

• locating and interviewing the complainant, the client, the subject and any witnesses;  

• drafting and serving subpoenas for necessary information. 
 

 



Overview of the Board and Division 
Page 2 of 3 

 
After investigators have gathered pertinent information or evidence to prove or disprove an 
alleged violation, the matter is reviewed with the Chief Investigator and, when appropriate, the 
Board or Commission’s liaison, a panel of two Board Members, or an expert in the field.  This 
review may result in a recommendation that more information be obtained, the case be closed, 
or that the case continue forward.  The Board's liaison or review panel does not determine guilt 
or innocence; it simply reviews the complaint to determine whether the allegations, supported 
by un-contested or sufficient evidence, would warrant proceeding with disciplinary action even 
if contested by the licensee.  
 
If the complaint is supported by evidence, it proceeds to a case, or investigation.  Once an 
investigation is opened, the licensee is notified they are under official investigation by the 
Division on behalf of the Board or Commission.  This distinguishes between allegations brought 
against a licensee and a matter where allegations were brought and it was determined the 
licensee committed a violation of statutes or regulations governing their license.  This is an 
important step because complaints can be unfounded or determined to be unsupported by 
evidence, and they are closed before becoming an official investigation, protecting the subject 
of the complaint from unwarranted repercussions in the community or area of practice.  If a 
violation is supported by evidence and the matter proceeds to an investigation, the next step is 
determining an appropriate result. 
 
Disposition of Cases: 
The majority of cases are resolved through a Consent Agreement, an amicable settlement of a 
case short of a public hearing; this Agreement spells out agreed upon disciplinary action 
between the Board and the licensee and allows more options in achieving a balanced resolution 
for both parties. 
 
The Consent Agreement is written by the Division, in consultation with a Reviewing Board or 
Commission Member; they consider the nature of the violation, the standard in effect at the 
time it was violated, the effect of the violation on the public and the profession, whether the 
respondent was knowing and willful, previous violations, whether the licensee was cooperative 
and took responsibility for the violation, any mitigating circumstances, the disciplinary action's 
effect on improving the licensee’s practices, precedents set by other cases for consistency from 
case to case, and if appropriate, a necessary deterrent for other practitioners to avoid a similar 
violation.  
 
 
 



Overview of the Board and Division 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Consent Agreements may involve any of the following:  

• reprimand 
• revocation  
• assessment of a civil penalty (fine) 
• suspension (for a specific period of time) 
• probation  
• condition to take additional Continuing Education over and above the annual 

requirement  
• restrictions on practice (some Boards) 

 
If an Agreement with the licensee is unsuccessful, the case is referred to the investigators’ 
counsel, an Assistant Attorney General (AAG), for review and possible litigation, filing an 
Accusation charging the violations.  If an Accusation is filed, the licensee is entitled to a hearing 
on the charges against them.  After guidance from the Board or Commission and the Division, 
the AAG may approach the licensee to negotiate a settlement prior to a hearing. If a settlement 
cannot be reached, an administrative hearing will be held.  All involved parties may be 
requested to appear and testify at the hearing, conducted by the Office of Administrative 
Hearings (OAH).  After the hearing, OAH provides the Board or Commission with a proposed 
decision and order; the Board or Commission may adopt, amend, or reject the proposed 
decision and issue their own Decision and Order.  Any Decision and Order adopted by the Board 
or Commission may be appealed to the Superior Court by the licensee.   
 
The Division does not intervene in a dispute regarding the fees charged by a licensee. 
Disciplinary action is considered carefully on a case-by-case basis since the action may 
adversely affect the licensee reputation and ability to make a living.  Therefore, it takes more 
than a claim of wrongdoing to file a complaint with the Board; the allegation must be 
substantiated and must be jurisdictional to the statutes and regulations of that Board or 
practice area. 
 
Confidentiality: 
Investigations are required by statute to be kept confidential. This often prevents the 
complainant, licensee, and the Board from obtaining progress reports or information that may 
disclose the current status of an open investigation.  This also protects the reputation of 
licensees who may be accused of wrongdoing but the allegations against them are unproven.  
Cases often involve other agencies, businesses, and practices; disclosing information during an 
on-going case can compromise the investigation, create conflicts for reviewing Board members, 
or result in unnecessary hardship to the licensee.   



Investigative Process 
 

Consumer 
contacts division 
with complaint - 
intake initiated 

 
 
 
 
 

Investigator 
sends complaint 
packet/release 

forms 

 
Complaint packet 

not returned 
(within 30 days) 

 

 Intake closed 

 

     Complaint 
packet returned 
(within 30 days) 

 
 

Case proceeds to 
complaint 

Board member 
case review 

 

Complaint is not 
jurisdictional 

 
 Complaint closed 

 
 
 

Complaint is 
jurisdictional 

 
 
 

Board 
member/expert 

case review 

 
 
 
 
 
 

License action 
(when warranted) or 
closure by other means 

(See license action 
flowchart)

 
 
 
 
 

* Additional investigative activity may occur at 
this phase based upon board member input. 

Case proceeds to 
Investigations * Investigation closed 

No violation 

Information Collection 
Witness Interviews Weather Reports 
Subpoenas Hunt Records 
Police Reports Game Tags 
Health Care Records Marine Vehicle 
Financial Documents Property Listings 
Court Records 

Violation 



 Board/Commission License Action Options  
 

 

Cease and Desist Order 
 

On notice of possible violation, the Commissioner 
may, if in public’s interest, issue Cease and Desist 

Order. AS 08.01.087(b). The board is polled for 
objection. 

 

Division initiates suspension (per delegated 
authority) within Consent Agreement. 

Hearing possible, after which the board considers 
proposed ALJ decision, and adopts, rejects or 

amends. 

Summary Suspension 
 

Investigation shows “clear and immediate threat 
to public health and safety”, Division presents 

petition for summary suspension. 

License Denial 

Consent Agreement 
 

Investigation Unit presents a Consent Agreement, 
either before or after an Accusation is filed. 

Accusation 
Investigation informed by the professional opinion 

of a Reviewing Board Member leads to filing an 
Accusation; if requested, hearing follows, decision 
goes to board with proposals for action from both 

parties, if any. 

Violation of Consent  Agreement:          
Automatic Suspension 

Board is informed of violation warranting 
immediate suspension under terms of Consent 

Agreement. 

Board determines whether to accept, reject, or 
modify proposed decision and determine which 

sanctions to impose. 
 

AS 08.01.075 

Board may approve or reject. 
 

If board rejects Consent Agreement, further 
negotiations may follow or a hearing may be 

held. 

Board issues or denies license based on 
Alaska statutes specific to the profession. 

 

Possible hearing if license is denied, proposed 
decision, and final adoption by board. 

Board issues summary suspension; hearing to 
follow within 7 days. 

 

AS 08.01.075(c) 
 

Post-hearing there is a proposed decision (from a 
judge), requires adoption by board. 

Board can object. 
 

Must be majority, within 10 days. 

Circumstance Response/Options 



Radiologic Equipment 



 DEN 
STATE OF ALASKA 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 

BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 
P.O. BOX 110806 

JUNEAU, ALASKA 99811-0806 
(907) 465-2542 

E-mail:  license@alaska.gov 
 

RADIOLOGICAL EQUIPMENT INSPECTOR APPLICATION FORM 
 
INSTRUCTIONS:  Please type or print in ink and forward to the above address.  Complete and specific answers will aid in 
the processing of your application. 
 
 
Name:                 
 
Company Name:                
 
Residence Address:               
 
                
  City     State               Zip Code 
 
Mailing Address:               
 
                
  City     State               Zip Code 
 
Home Telephone:         Business or Message Telephone:       
 
Document the following by submitting transcripts and other supporting evidence of the following requirements to be a 
Radiological Health Specialist I according to AS 08.36.075: 
 

1. A Bachelor’s degree or the equivalent from an accredited college with a major in radiological health, health 
physics, physics, chemistry, environmental science, or closely related field. 

 
2. Two years of professional experience which involved four or more of the following: 

 
a. inspecting, investigating or surveying the use of radiation producing equipment; 
b. determining compliance with rules and regulations governing radiation use; 
c. providing advice on safe practices concerning radiation; 
d. operating radiation field survey and laboratory instruments; 
e. carrying out procedures to control radioactive contamination or to reduce radiation exposures to the public; 

and 
f. evaluation of hazards associated with use of radioactive materials. 
 
At least one year must have been in medical and/or dental X-ray protection. 

 
SUBSTITUTION 
 
1. Master’s degree or the equivalent from an accredited college in radiological health, health physics, physics, chemistry, 

environmental science, or a closely related field may substitute or the nonspecific experience on a year-for-year basis; 
and 

 
2. One year of experience in medical and/or dental X-ray protection involving four or more of the functions described 

above. 
 
WARNING:  The deliberate concealment or falsification of information on this application may result in the rejection of 
your application, removal from the list of eligible candidates, or removal from the position.  Information supplied with this 
application is considered public, unless required to be kept confidential pursuant to state or federal law. 
 
I certify under penalty of perjury that the information furnished in this application is true and correct. 
 
 
 
        Signature:         
 
        Date:          
 
08-4418 (Rev. 07/09) 
 



STATE OF ALASKA 
BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 

LETTER OF PROFESSIONAL REFERENCE 
 
Dear :      : 
 
I am applying to be a dental radiological equipment inspector in the State of Alaska and I am required to 
provide two professional references. Please provide the information requested to the State of Alaska at the 
address shown below. In lieu of using this form, this professional reference may be written on professional 
letterhead. Thank you for your assistance. 
 

State of Alaska 
Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development 

Division of Corporations, Business and Professional Licensing 
Board of Dental Examiners 

P.O. Box 110806 
Juneau, Alaska 99811-0806 

 
      Signature:         
 
      Printed Name:         
 
      Address:          
 
                   
 
 

PLEASE DO NOT DETACH 
 

I recommend the applicant as being professional capable, reliable, and worthy of confidence. In addition, I 
offer the following personal statement regarding my knowledge of the applicant: 
 
               

               

                

 
         
Printed name         Degree 
 
                
Signature         Title/Company 
 
         
Address 
 
         
City      State          Zip Code 
 
                
Office Telephone Number       Home Telephone Number 
 
 NOTE: The letter of recommendation must come from a professional who is familiar with the 
 applicant’s work. 
 
08-4418a (Rev. 07/09) 

 



STATE OF ALASKA 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE, COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS, BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 
BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 

P.O. BOX 110806 
JUNEAU, ALASKA 99811-0806 

(907) 465-2542
E-mail: license@alaska.gov

RADIOLOGICAL EQUIPMENT INSPECTOR APPLICATION FORM 

DEN 

INSTRUCTIONS: Please type or print in ink and forward to the above address. Complete and specific answers will aid in 
the processing of your application. 

Name:-----------------------------------------

Company Name: ------------------------------------

Residence Address:------------------------------------

City State Zip Code 

Mailing Address:-------------------------------------

City State Zip Code 

Home Telephone:----------- Business or Message Telephone:-------------

Document the following by submitting transcripts and other supporting evidence of the following requirements: 
1. A Bachelor's degree, Master's degree or the equivalent from an accredited college with a major in radiological

health, health physics, physics, chemistry, engineering, environmental science or other closely related field.

2. One year of professional experience which involved three or more of the following:

a. the use of radiation producing equipment in a professional setting and the application of procedures to
both control and reduce radiation exposure to the public in order to minimize its potential harmful effects;

b. a working knowledge of the rules and regulations governing radiation use;
c. providing advice on safe practices concerning the use of radiation producing equipment;
d. the operation of radiation field survey instruments and/or technical field or laboratory instruments.

Professional experience required in item (2) above must have been in medical and/or dental X-ray protection. 

SUBSTITUTION 

Provide evidence of your qualifications to conduct dental x-ray tube head and control panel inspections to the    
satisfaction of the Board of Dental Examiners to insure that dental x-ray equipment is operating within the
tolerances provided by the equipment manufacturer.  This includes demonstrating your ability to obtain field test 
data and complete an objective analysis of that data to determine if test values are within specification.  

WARNING: The deliberate concealment or falsification of information on this application may result in the rejection of 
your application, removal from the list of eligible candidates, or removal from the position. Information supplied with this 
application is considered public, unless required to be kept confidential pursuant to state or federal law. 

I certify under penalty of perjury that the information furnished in this application is true and correct. 

Signature: 
-------------------

Date: 
---------------------





Agenda Item #__________ Topic: _________________________ 

Board of Dental Examiners 

Meeting Date: ____________________ 

Board Member 1st/
2nd 

Yes No Abstain Comments 

David Nielson, DDS 
Gail Walden, RDH 
Steven Scheller, DDS 
Brittany Dschaak, RDH 
Jesse Hronkin, DDS 
Jonathan Woller, DMD 
Kelly Lucas, DDS 
Dominic Wenzell, DMD 
Robin Wahto, Public 

Motion: 



Lunch 



Public Comment



PDMP Report 



PDMP REPORT FOR THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 04/04/2019 

  
 

Contact: Laura Carrillo, PDMP Manager | 907-269-8404 | akpdmp@alaska.gov 

Intent: 

This report contains high-level information on the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program 

(PDMP) and is intended to provide a summary of registration and reporting data specific to 

your profession. This report includes data up to March 2019. 

Overview: 

The PDMP began in 2008 and is housed with the Board of Pharmacy under the Department of 

Commerce, Community, and Economic Development (DCCED) – Corporations, Business, and 

Professional Licensing (CBPL) section. Mandatory registration, reviewing, and reporting requirements 

went into effect in July 2017. All actively licensed practitioners with a valid DEA registration are required 

to register with the database; however, there are both practice-specific and supply-duration exemptions 

in AS 17.30.200(k) and (u) in which practitioners are not required to consult the PDMP. Generally, 

practitioners are required to review patient prescription history before prescribing, administering, 

and/or directly dispensing a federally scheduled II – IV controlled substance. If directly dispensing, 

practitioners must report this information to the PDMP on a daily basis. Information on exemptions can 

be found pdmp.alaska.gov under the Registration and Use Exemptions tab and includes information for 

federally-employed practitioners and pharmacists as well as information on situational exemptions to 

PDMP use. If mandatory registration and use exemptions do not apply and a licensee fails to register 

with the PDMP, disciplinary action may be taken by the Board of Dental Examiners. 

Delegate access is allowed so long as the delegate holds an active license, certification, or registration 

under AS 08. Delegate access can help relieve time-constraints as reviewing and reporting tasks can be 

distributed to qualified staff.  

Updates and Imminent changes: 

• PDMP fees for initial and continued access went into effect on April 22, 2018 by authority of AS 

17.30.200, which was subsequently implemented under 12 AAC 02.107. This requires a $25.00 fee 

to be submitted before access to the controlled substance prescription database is granted. 

• PDMP renewal for dentists were be due by 02/28/19; however, due to the influx of delayed initial 

registrations, the processing time for renewals is 10 – 12 weeks from the date received. 

• Beginning June 2018, the PDMP began separating federal practitioners and pharmacists from those 

required to register by updating user roles, e.g.: ‘Dentist’ to ‘IHS Prescriber’ (Indian Health Service) 

Prescriber or ‘VA Prescriber’ (Veterans Administration) 

• Beginning June 2018, all newly registered and renewed PDMP users are issued separate PDMP 

registration numbers and are searchable by name under the program ‘Prescription Drug Monitoring 

Program’ at: https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Search/Professional  

• There are currently 51 pending accounts for dentists. 

• The FY2019 PDMP legislative report was submitted to the legislature in March and can be found at: 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/portals/5/pub/PHA_PDMP_2019_LegislativeReport.pdf 

• On May 15, 2019, the PDMP will be launching a new data analytics feature called NarxCare. More 

information will be provided on pdmp.alaska.gov in the coming weeks. 

 

 

file://///cedasdsobfs01.soa.alaska.gov/DCED/OCCLIC/PROFESSIONAL%20LICENSING/CBPL%20PROGRAMS/PDMP%20-%20nonconfidential%20only/PDMP%20Board%20Reports/pdmp.alaska.gov
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/cbp/main/Search/Professional
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/portals/5/pub/PHA_PDMP_2019_LegislativeReport.pdf
file://///cedasdsobfs01.soa.alaska.gov/DCED/OCCLIC/PROFESSIONAL%20LICENSING/CBPL%20PROGRAMS/PDMP%20-%20nonconfidential%20only/PDMP%20Board%20Reports/pdmp.alaska.gov


PDMP REPORT FOR THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 04/04/2019 

  
 

Contact: Laura Carrillo, PDMP Manager | 907-269-8404 | akpdmp@alaska.gov 

Data: 

The Alaska State Board of Dental Examiners regulates several license types, including dentists, dental 

hygienist, dental assistants, and also issues permits for sedation and general anesthesia. As of April 4, 

2019, there are a total of 7,254 registered users, 643 of which are dentists (Figure 1). The proportion of 

total licensed dentists registered with the PDMP is 73%; 27% are not registered (Figure 2) potentially 

due to potential non-compliance, not having an active Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 

registration, being registered with a federal user role, e.g.: IHS Prescriber, VA Prescriber, or Military 

Prescriber, or because of the administrative delay in processing. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dentists, 9%

Active PDMP Users

Physicians Physician Assistants

Optometrists APRNs

Dentists Pharmacists

Veterinarians Pharmacist Delegate

Practitioner Delegate *Other

Figure 1. Dentists comprise 9% of actively 

registered users. *Other includes IHS and 

VA prescribers and dispensers, military 

prescribers, admin, restricted admin, and 

medical examiners/coroners.  

643

879

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500
550
600
650
700
750
800
850
900

PDMP Users Dentist Licensees

Registered PDMP Users vs. Number of 

Licensees Figure 2. The proportion of licensed 

dentists to registered PDMP users is 

represented; however, some licensed 

dentists may be excluded from this 

figure due to not holding an active 

DEA registration, being employed 

with the IHS, VA, or military, or whose 

registration is yet to be processed. 



PDMP REPORT FOR THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 04/04/2019 

  
 

Contact: Laura Carrillo, PDMP Manager | 907-269-8404 | akpdmp@alaska.gov 

Figure 3 below shows the number of opioid prescriptions dispensed against the number of patient 

prescription history requests. Figures 4 – 6 shows the interaction activities of captured from January 

2017 to December 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000

70000

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c

t-
1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1
7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c

t-
1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

8

F
e

b
-1

8

M
a

r-
1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
a

y
-1

8

J
u

n
-1

8

J
u

l-
1
8

A
u

g
-1

8

S
e

p
-1

8

O
c

t-
1

8

N
o

v
-1

8

D
e

c
-1

8

J
a

n
-1

9

F
e

b
-1

9

M
a

r-
1
9

Opioids Dispensed vs. Patient History Requests

Opioids Dispensed Patient Requests

406

903

542

419

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1
7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c

t-
1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

8

F
e

b
-1

8

M
a

r-
1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
a

y
-1

8

Ju
n

-1
8

J
u

l-
1
8

A
u

g
-1

8

S
e

p
-1

8

O
c

t-
1

8

N
o

v
-1

8

D
e

c
-1

8

J
a

n
-1

9

F
e

b
-1

9

M
a

r-
1
9

Login Activity for Dentists

Figure 3. This graph shows the upward trend of patient prescription history requests in the PDMP, suggesting an inverse 

relationship between overall opioid dispensing in the state. The decrease in opioid dispensations may also be attributed to 

other factors, including prescriptive policies and salience of increased state-wide monitoring of prescribing practices as 

reflected in individual prescriber report cards. 

 

Figure 4. Prior to January 2019, login activity peaked in July, corresponding to the effective date of mandatory use. In 

January, the PDMP recorded 903 logins, a 122.4% increase from the previous month; however, patient prescription query 

trends do not indicate a corresponding increase with this login peak (see figure 6). 



PDMP REPORT FOR THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 04/04/2019 

  
 

Contact: Laura Carrillo, PDMP Manager | 907-269-8404 | akpdmp@alaska.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 6 below shows the number of morphine milligram equivalents (MME) prescribed (subsequently 

dispensed) by profession. MMEs is a standardized measurement used to represent the potency of 

opioids but excludes buprenorphine as a partial opioid agonist.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4,201,300

84,620,216

1,426

456,519,026

82,436,961

1,996,822

4,805,994

99,747,749

4,771

476,336,825

103,160,995

2,143,044

3,966,704

86,148,296

830

487677644

112,122,687

2,778,840

2,912,079

94,361,617

748

528689879

101,055,061

5,165,066

DENTIST

APRN

OPTOMETRIST

PHYSICIAN

PHYSICIAN ASSISTANT

VETERINARIAN

MMEs by Profession (2016 - 2018) 

2018 2017 2016 2015

448
353360

395
386

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800
J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1
7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c

t-
1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

8

F
e

b
-1

8

M
a

r-
1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
a

y
-1

8

J
u

n
-1

8

J
u

l-
1
8

A
u

g
-1

8

S
e

p
-1

8

O
c

t-
1

8

N
o

v
-1

8

D
e

c
-1

8

J
a

n
-1

9

F
e

b
-1

9

M
a

r-
1
9

Patient Prescription History Query Activity for Dentists

Figure 5. Patient prescription queries peaked in July 2017, corresponding to the mandatory use requirement; however, 

queries have not changed substantially for the last 12 months. 

Figure 6. MMEs prescribed by dentists comprised .4% of total MMEs prescribed in 2018. The percent of MMEs prescribed 

by dentists fell by 26.5% from 2017 to 2018.  



PDMP REPORT FOR THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 04/04/2019 

  
 

Contact: Laura Carrillo, PDMP Manager | 907-269-8404 | akpdmp@alaska.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3,991 3,799

1,370 1,368
974

662 756 568 650 523 473

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Monthly MMEs by Profession: Dentists 

(Adjusted by Registration Count; 2017)

489

404
457 430 419

380 356
401

311
367

324 318

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Monthly MMEs by Profession: Dentists 

(Adjusted by Registration Count; 2018)

Figure 7. MMEs per month by profession and adjusted by registration count. January 2017 values are unavailable due 

to incomplete data. 

349

287

332

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

Jan-19 Feb-19 Mar-19

Monthly MMEs by Profession: Dentists 

(Adjusted by Registration Count; 2019)



PDMP REPORT FOR THE BOARD OF DENTAL EXAMINERS 04/04/2019 

  
 

Contact: Laura Carrillo, PDMP Manager | 907-269-8404 | akpdmp@alaska.gov 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 8. Registered users have steadily increased following mandatory registration. 

34 54 41 35 58 76 77 76 243
594

1,539

412307184
437245144 73 71 70 34 79 39 48 62 103256 54 49 20 8

1,751 1,846

1,939
2,015 2,168

2,411

3,005

4,544

5,2635,447
5,884

6,273 6,417 6453
6555

6265 6375
6754

7177

7,226

7246

7,254

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c

t-
1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1
7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c

t-
1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

8

F
e

b
-1

8

M
a

r-
1
8

A
p

r-
1

8

M
a

y
-1

8

J
u

n
-1

8

J
u

l-
1
8

A
u

g
-1

8

S
e

p
-1

8

O
c

t-
1

8

N
o

v
-1

8

D
e

c
-1

8

J
a

n
-1

9

F
e

b
-1

9

M
a

r-
1
9

Registered PDMP Users

New Users Total Users



NarxCare is a comprehensive platform to identify, prevent and manage substance use 
disorder (SUD). It empowers prescribers and dispensers to identify patients that may 
be at risk for addiction, overdose and death, and equips clinicians and care teams with 
the tools and technology they need to help those patients. Now, with NarxCare, clinical 
decisions can be supported with objective insights into potential drug misuse or abuse, 
and patients can be provided with the care they need. 

NarxCare aggregates and analyzes prescription information from providers and 
pharmacies and presents interactive, visual representations of that information, 
as well as advanced analytic insights, complex risk scores and more to help physicians, 
pharmacists and care teams to provide better patient safety and better patient 
outcomes. The platform can also accommodate additional information sources to 
create more holistic risk models, assessments and alerts.

The identification of patients at risk is only the beginning of a comprehensive 
platform needed to impact the increasing prevalence of substance use disorder. 
NarxCare extends beyond information and insights to provide tools and resources 
to enable care teams to support patient needs. Increasing access to treatment 
through medication-assisted treatment (MAT) locators, improving patient education 
and engagement through CDC information sheets , and enabling the coordination 
of care across the continuum through powerful care team communications1 are key 
NarxCare features that are widely recognized as critical to success. These resources can 
be used to help patients in need, at the right time, in a meaningful way, quickly and easily, at the point of care. 

This information, insight and functionality is all accessed through existing electronic health records (EHR) or pharmacy 
management systems, so there is no logging in or out of secondary websites or trying to manage user names or passwords. 
NarxCare is also available right in the PDMP where enabled by the state. The platform is presented in three main modules: The 
Narx Report, Resources and Care Team Communications.

The Narx Report

The Narx Report includes a patient’s NarxScores, Predictive Risk Scores, Additional Risk Indicators, Rx Graph and PDMP Data, 
as well as access to Resources and Care Team Communications all in a single, easy-to-use interface. See Image 1.0.

The Benefit
Care teams make informed decisions 

quickly and confidently to help patients.

Analytics, tools and technology to help care teams address substance use disorder 
and improve patient outcomes

Appriss Health developed the NarxCare platform to provide a more comprehensive approach 
to addressing substance use disorder. NarxCare aids care teams in clinical decision-making, 
provides support to help prevent or manage substance use disorder, and empowers states with 
the comprehensive platform they need to take the next step in the battle against addiction. 

WWW. APPRISSHEALTH.COM/NARXCARE

as well as advanced analytic insights, complex risk scores and more to help physicians, 

through medication-assisted treatment (MAT) locators, improving patient education 

of care across the continuum through powerful care team communications1 are key * Image 1.0: The Narx Report

1 9901 Linn Station Road | Suite 500 | Louisville, KY 40223 | apprisshealth.com



The NarxScores
Every Narx Report includes 
type-specific use scores for 
narcotics, sedatives, and stimulants. 
These scores are based on a complex 
algorithm factoring in numbers of 
prescribers, morphine milligram 
equivalents (MME), pharmacies, and 
overlapping prescriptions. Scores 
are quantified representations of 
the data in the PDMP and range 
from 000-999 with higher scores 
equating to higher risk and misuse, 
and the last digit always represents 
the number of active prescriptions.

The Predictive Risk Scores
These composite risk scores 
incorporate relevant data (PDMP 
and non-PDMP) into advanced and 
customized predictive models to 

calculate a patient’s risk of a host 
of outcomes, including overdose and 
addiction. Non-PDMP data sets may 
include medical claims data, electronic 
health records, EMS data and criminal 
justice data. The Overdose Risk Score 
is featured in Image 1.0. 

Additional Risk Indicators
There are multiple, fully configurable and 
customizable PDMP- and non-PDMP-
based additional risk indicators (ARIs). 
When present, a or a combination 
of ARIs may contribute to the risk of 
unintentional overdose or other adverse 
events.

The Rx Graph
The Rx Graph is simple, clear, and 
comparative. The interactive display 
allows you to view all the information 

you need, analyze data, and click 
into specific data points to see more 
detail. You can easily visualize and 
understand patterns in prescribing 
and usage behaviors, as well as 
identify overlapping prescriptions.

The PDMP Data
The PDMP Report is the definitive 
source for controlled substance 
data, a critical component to any 
SUD strategy, through its access to 
multi-state PDMP data. The PDMP 
Report aggregates two years of 
historical prescription data from 
providers and pharmacies, including 
quantities and active prescriptions.

* Image 2.0: Resources

The Value
Appriss Health knows that the 

delivery of NarxCare, a 

comprehensive substance use 

disorder platform, is the best 

way to ensure that prescribers, 

dispensers, and states support the 

health of their patient populations.

comparative. The interactive display 
allows you to view all the information 

2 9901 Linn Station Road | Suite 500 | Louisville, KY 40223 | apprisshealth.com

The Resources and Care Team Communications

The NarxCare Resources module equips clinicians and care teams with the 
tools needed to increase access to treatment and improve patient education 
and engagement. The MAT locator automatically finds convenient locations for 
treatment and enables clinicians to help patients in need. The CDC Resources 
enable clinicians to educate and engage patients by providing context-sensitive 
information when patients need it most. And all content is fully configurable, 
enabling states, health systems and pharmacies to include custom treatment 
options or information sources. All features are accessible with a single click 
and automatically contextualized to an individual patient’s demographics. 
See Image 2.0.

Perhaps the most powerful tool in the prevention and treatment of substance 
use disorder is collaboration and coordination of care. NarxCare takes advantage 
of the pervasiveness of the PDMP and its prominent role in controlled substance 
use to enable messaging, including the transmission of documents, among clinicians 
and care team members across the continuum of care. 

Messaging enables coordination of care among physicians, pharmacists, care 
managers, behavioral health providers and other professionals caring for patients. 
These professionals can share care plans, highlight gaps in care, refer patients for 
support or treatment and improve integration of behavioral health and primary care. 
The messaging functionality also enables the sharing of Opioid Treatment Agreements, ensuring that all prescribers that 
encounter the patient are aware that the agreement exists and can view it, a key patient safety tool and a requirement of 
Meaningful Use beginning in 2020.

Additionally, NarxCare enables care notes and clinical alerts, allowing providers or the PDMP to add critical patient information 
to the platform such as history of overdose, specific medication restrictions, caregiver support or other relevant clinical or social 
information. The platform can also display automatically-generated clinical alerts triggered by customizable algorithms based 
on PDMP and non-PDMP data. Once added, this information can be viewed by care teams in line with the PDMP data 
to enable the best possible care.



PDMP Penalty Matrix 



02/15/2019 
 

State of Alaska Board of Dental Examiners Disciplinary Matrix for PDMP 
Infractions 

Infraction Board Approved 
Disciplinary Precedent 

Board Approved 
Disciplinary Precedent 

Initial Failure to register with 
PDMP. 

  

Failure to prescribe within 
guidelines stated in regulations. 

  

Failure to renew PDMP 
registration. 

  

Failure to check 
registry/patient history prior 
to prescribing, administering 
or dispensing class II/III 
medication. 

  

Failure to deactivate PDMP 
delegate. 

  

Inappropriate access to 
PDMP. 

  



 

 

 

 

 
Department of Commerce, Community, 

and Economic Development 
 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
 

P.O. Box 110806 
Juneau, AK 99811-0806 

Main: 907.465.2589 
Fax: 907.465.2974 

 
 

 
       

         
Dear licensee, 
 
The Alaska Board of Pharmacy has received information that you have not registered with the Alaska 
Prescription Drug Monitoring Program (PDMP) or have registered more than 30 days from the initial 
issue date of your Alaska pharmacist license.  Alaska regulation 12 AAC 52.855 requires all licensed 
pharmacists, prior to dispensing federally classified schedule II, III, or IV controlled substances, to 
register with the controlled substance prescription database (PDMP).   
 
If you do not dispense schedule II, III, or IV controlled substances under federal law, please complete 
the attached form and return to the Board of Pharmacy. 
 
If you do dispense schedule II, III, or IV controlled substances under federal law, under Regulation 12 
AAC 52.890 it is considered grounds for the imposition of disciplinary sanctions that you have not yet 
registered.  Because these are new laws, the Board of Pharmacy has chosen to focus on bringing 
pharmacists into compliance.  For your registration violation, the Board has determined not to pursue 
disciplinary sanctions against you.  This is a one-time grace period/leniency and you have 30-days to 
become compliant with AS 17.30.200 and 12 AAC 52.855.  It is your responsibility to comply with all 
statutes and regulations regarding your practice in the State of Alaska, including timely renewal of your 
PDMP registration. 
 
To register, you must first create online credentials at alaska.pmpaware.net, then submit form #08-4760 
found at pdmp.alaska.gov. 
 
PDMP Frequently Asked Questions: 
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/PrescriptionDrugMonitoringProgr
am/PDMPNotificationFAQs.aspx 
 
In addition, as a result of AS 17.30.200, please review PDMP regulations 12 AAC 52.855 – 12 AAC 
52.895. 
 
Professionally, 
 
Alaska Board of Pharmacy 

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/PrescriptionDrugMonitoringProgram/PDMPNotificationFAQs.aspx
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/cbpl/ProfessionalLicensing/PrescriptionDrugMonitoringProgram/PDMPNotificationFAQs.aspx


State of Alaska Medical Board PDMP Penalty Matrix - Example 
 

 



License # Type Owners Issue Date
License Issue 
Date

DEA/CS Authority 
Issue Date

Date Registration 
Complete To Investigations

# of days late (from date of 
initial lic or DEA issue)*

# of days late from July 
2017 deadline

PDMP Dental 7/30/2018 4/24/2018 Not listed 6/22/2018
case opened 
#2018‐000852

PDMP Dental 8/10/2018 7/16/2018 Not listed 8/6/2018 21 since licensed N/A
PDMP Dental 9/5/2018 6/25/1973 Not listed 8/20/2018 9/5/2018 45 years 400
PDMP Dental 10/17/2018 3/19/2014 Not listed 10/9/2018 N/A 449
PDMP Dental 10/17/2018 6/20/2007 Not listed 6/5/2017 N/A 435
PDMP Dental 10/25/2018 8/3/1998 Not listed 5/22/2017 N/A 344
PDMP Dental 11/5/2018 12/9/2013 Not listed 11/14/2018 N/A 485
PDMP Dental 11/7/2018 3/2/2018 5/1/2014 10/23/2018 236 since licensed N/A
PDMP Dental 11/12/2018 5/11/1993 4/4/2017 11/12/2018 N/A 483
PDMP Dental 11/23/2018 8/21/2018 Not listed 11/23/2018 94 since licensed N/A
PDMP Dental 12/22/2018 12/18/1985 Not listed 11/21/2017 N/A 127
PDMP Dental 12/22/2018 10/20/1988 Not listed 8/7/2017 N/A 21
PDMP Dental 12/22/2018 6/20/2014 Not listed 11/21/2017 N/A 127
PDMP Dental 12/22/2018 11/24/2003 Not listed 5/25/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/22/2018 9/21/1981 Not listed 6/28/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/22/2018 8/3/1998 8/1/1998 5/22/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/23/2018 5/27/2009 4/4/2018 6/1/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/23/2018 6/30/2010 8/10/2010 3/6/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/26/2018 2/27/2007 3/3/1999 5/24/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/26/2018 12/24/1991 6/12/2018 5/22/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/27/2018 4/24/2009 1/16/2017 9/28/2016 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 12/27/2018 4/12/2016 7/15/2016 8/17/2017 N/A 31
PDMP Dental 1/17/2019 6/19/2018 7/25/2018 12/6/2018 134 since DEA registered N/A
PDMP Dental 1/23/2019 4/12/2016 Not listed 6/26/2017 N/A N/A
PDMP Dental 1/23/2019 7/2/2018 7/1/2018 12/10/2018 162 since licensed N/A
PDMP Dental 1/28/2019 8/29/2018 9/30/2015 1/25/2019 150 since licensed N/A
PDMP Dental 2/7/2019 8/21/2018 9/13/2018 12/14/2018 93 since DEA registered N/A
PDMP Dental 3/4/2019 7/25/2018 8/15/2018 2/18/2019 188 days since DEA registered N/A
PDMP Dental 3/21/2019 2/11/2019 3/27/2018 2/14/2019 3 N/A
PDMP Dental 3/21/2019 12/8/2014 5/1/2008 7/26/2017 N/A 10
PDMP Dental 3/22/2019 11/16/2018 9/1/2000 1/7/2019 53 since licensed N/A
PDMP Dental 3/26/2019 8/10/2018 10/2/2018 1/7/2019 98 since DEA registered N/A

* Number entered only if professional license was issued after the PDMP registration deadline of 07/17/2017

tlwiard
Highlight



Agenda Item #__________ Topic: _________________________ 

Board of Dental Examiners 

Meeting Date: ____________________ 

Board Member 1st/
2nd 

Yes No Abstain Comments 

David Nielson, DDS 
Gail Walden, RDH 
Steven Scheller, DDS 
Brittany Dschaak, RDH 
Jesse Hronkin, DDS 
Jonathan Woller, DMD 
Kelly Lucas, DDS 
Dominic Wenzell, DMD 
Robin Wahto, Public 

Motion: 



Break



AAFDO 







Board Business 



Task list-April 15th 2019 meeting 

Task Person 
Responsible to 

Complete 

Due Date OLE to distribute? 



Adjourn 



Board or Commission: _____________________________________________ 

Meeting Date: __________________________ 

Agenda Item # ______         Tab #______  Topic: __________________________________ 

 

Primary Motion 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

 

Subsidiary Motion or Amendment 

Motion:  

 

 

 

 
0 

Board Member Motion  2nd  Yes Vote No Vote Abstain Recuse Comments 

         

         

         
         

         
         
 


	1. Statutes & Regulations
	Centralized_Licensing_Stats.pdf
	Centralized_Licensing_Regs.pdf
	DentalStatutes.pdf

	2. Call to Order/Roll Call
	Mission Statement.pdf
	calendar19.pdf
	Call to Order - Roll Call.pdf
	Board Roster Current.pdf

	3. Review of Agenda
	Review - Approve Agenda.pdf
	DRAFT AGENDA 04.15.19.pdf
	Motion form.pdf

	4. Review Approve Past Meeting Minutes
	Review - Approve Meeting Minutes.pdf
	1. February 15, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes
	Draft Meeting Minutes 02.15.19.pdf
	Motion form.pdf

	2. March 08, 2019 SB 68 Teleconference Minutes
	Draft Meeting Minutes 03.08.19.docx.pdf
	Motion form.pdf


	5. Ethics Report
	Ethics report.pdf
	Ethics Disclosure Information.pdf
	Motion form.pdf

	6. Board Review Application
	Board Review of Applications.pdf
	Executive Session Motion.pdf
	1. Board Vote on Record
	Email with request to withdraw letter.pdf
	Letter requesting to withdraw application.pdf
	Oppel-Brown, Sarah Courtesy_Redacted.pdf
	Email with request to withdraw letter.pdf
	Letter requesting to withdraw application.pdf
	Babineau, John Courtesy_Redacted.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf
	Halvorson, Tina Credentials_Redacted.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf
	Renew Dental License in Suspended Status.pdf
	Lookhart, Redacted.pdf
	Renew Moderate Sedation License in Suspended Status.pdf
	Lookhart, Seth Mod Sed Redacted.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf


	7. Break
	Break Time.pdf

	8. Specialty Licenses
	Specialty Licenses.pdf
	E-mail Regarding Advertising of Dental Specialties.pdf
	Specialty Advertising Letter.pdf
	Specialist License Previous Wording.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf

	9. Regulations Update
	Regulation Review.pdf
	1. Expiration Dates for Deep Sedation, Moderate Sedation, Coronal Polish, Dental Assistant and Hygienist Restorative Function Certificates & Permits
	Regulations to become effective 5/1/2019.pdf
	Examples CE regs.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf


	10. Investigation and Probation Report
	Investigation and Probation Report.pdf
	DEN Board Investigative Report - April 2019.pdf
	Executive Session Motion.pdf
	DEN PROBATION REPORT APRIL 2019 (002).docx.pdf
	HARBOLT ORDER.pdf
	HARBOLT SURRENDER DOC RECEIVED.pdf
	HARBOLT PROBATION MEMO - CONFIDENTIAL.pdf
	1. Case Review Process
	CBPL Investigative Process.pdf


	11. Radiological Equipment Inspection
	Radiologic Equipment.pdf
	Current Radiologic Inspector App.pdf
	Proposed New Xray Inspect Appl.Final 082616.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf

	12. Lunch
	Lunch.pdf

	13. Public Comment
	Public Comment.pdf

	14. PDMP Report
	PDMP Report.pdf

	15. PDMP Penalty Matrix
	PDMP Penalty Matrix.pdf
	Matrix.pdf
	PHA - PDMP Example letter for late registration.pdf
	Late PDMP Registration DEN 06.07.18 - 3.27.19.pdf
	DEN Roll Call Vote.pdf

	16. Break
	Break Time.pdf

	17. AAFDO
	AAFDO.pdf
	1. References from SAMERI Users
	Letter of Recommendation.pdf
	Letter of Recommendation.pdf


	18. Board Business
	Board Business.pdf
	1. Dental Board Task List
	Task list.pdf


	19. Adjourn
	Adjourn.pdf
	Motion form.pdf


	NAME: Sarah K. Oppel-Brown
	Receipt Date: 2/15/19
	1: 2/15/19
	Receipt Number: 201820969430
	2: 2/15/19
	Receipt Number_2: 201820969430
	3: 2/15/19
	4: 2/15/19
	5: 2/15/19
	6: 2/19/19
	7: 2/15/19
	1_2: 2/15/19
	2_2: 2/15/19
	Practice location: Aurora Community Activity Center Fort Greely, AK 99731
	3_2: 2/15/19
	Duration of practice From: 04/24/2019
	To: 04/28/2019
	4_2: 2/15/19
	Patient population to be seen: Active Duty & Dependents
	5_2: 
	Supervising dentist: 
	Lic: 
	DATE APPLICATION FILE IS COMPLETE: 2/19/19
	DATE APPLICATION APPROVED BY BOARD: 
	LICENSE NUMBER: 144311
	ISSUED ON: 
	NAME1: John Babineau
	Receipt Date1: 2/21/19
	11: 2/21/19
	Receipt Number1: 201820971248
	21: 2/21/19
	Receipt Number_21: 201820971248
	31: 2/21/19
	41: 2/21/19
	51: 2/21/19
	61: 2/5/19
	71: 
	1_21: 2/21/19
	2_21: 2/21/19
	Practice location1: Fort Greely Alaska
	3_21: 2/21/19
	Duration of practice From1: 04/23/19
	To1: 04/29/19
	4_21: 2/21/19
	Patient population to be seen1: Ft. Greely Service Members & Dependents
	5_21: 
	Supervising dentist1: 
	Lic1: 
	DATE APPLICATION FILE IS COMPLETE1: 
	DATE APPLICATION APPROVED BY BOARD1: 
	LICENSE NUMBER1: 144370
	ISSUED ON1: 
	NAME2: Tina Halvorson
	Receipt Date2: 3/1/19
	DOCUMENTS TO BE SUBMITTED BY APPLICANT: 3/1/19
	Receipt Number2: 201820971752
	12: 3/1/19
	Receipt Number_22: 201820971752
	22: 3/1/19
	Receipt Number_3: 201820971752
	32: 3/1/19
	Receipt Number_4: 201820971752
	42: 3/1/19
	52: 3/1/19
	DOCUMENTS TO BE SUBMITTED BY PBIS: 3/1/19
	undefined: 3/25/19
	Expires: 03/22/2020
	Check Box3: Yes
	Verification of Licenses: MT
	OTHER INFORMATION REQUIRED: 3/28/19
	1_22: 3/28/19
	2_22: 3/14/19
	Jurisprudence Examination sent: 3/13/19
	DATE APPLICATION FILE IS COMPLETE2: 3/28/19
	DATE APPLICATION APPROVED BY THE BOARD: 
	LICENSE NUMBER2: 144460
	ISSUED ON2: 
	Check Box1: Yes
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Yes
	Check Box6: Yes
	Check Box7: Yes
	Check Box8: Yes
	Check Box9: Yes
	Check Box10: Yes
	Check Box11: Yes
	Check Box12: Off
	Name Of Applicant: Tina Lyn Halvorson
	Number of CE hoursRow1: 3
	Name of CourseRow1: Records Roulette / How Many Felonies Did You Commit Today?
	Date on certificateRow1: 1/11/19
	Number of CE hoursRow2: 4
	Name of CourseRow2: Periodontics: Oral Health and Wellness I. Understanding Periodontal Health, Recognizing Disease Stages...
	Date on certificateRow2: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow3: 2
	Name of CourseRow3: Management of Patients with Chronic Disease
	Date on certificateRow3: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow4: 5
	Name of CourseRow4: Current Concepts in Preventative Dentistry
	Date on certificateRow4: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow5: 3
	Name of CourseRow5: Clinical Practice Guideline for an Infection Control/Exposure Control Program..
	Date on certificateRow5: 1/3/19
	Number of CE hoursRow6: 4
	Name of CourseRow6: HAZCOM/GHS and Subparts of OSHA Regs / CDC Guidelines for Infection Control...
	Date on certificateRow6: 1/12/18
	Number of CE hoursRow7: 4
	Name of CourseRow7: A Guide to Clinical Differential Diagnosis of Oral Mucosal Lesions
	Date on certificateRow7: 1/18/18
	Number of CE hoursRow8: 2
	Name of CourseRow8: Radiographic Interpretations
	Date on certificateRow8: 1/3/19
	Number of CE hoursRow9: 2
	Name of CourseRow9: Actinic Chellosis: Etiology, Epidemiology, Clinical Manifestations, Diagnosis and Treatment
	Date on certificateRow9: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow10: 2
	Name of CourseRow10: Ethics in Dentistry: Part III - Ethical Decision Making
	Date on certificateRow10: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow11: 1
	Name of CourseRow11: Review of Infection Control Part 2
	Date on certificateRow11: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow12: 1
	Name of CourseRow12: Review of Infection Control Part 1
	Date on certificateRow12: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow13: 1
	Name of CourseRow13: Osteoporosis and Dental Implant Outcomes
	Date on certificateRow13: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow14: 1
	Name of CourseRow14: Periodontitis and Oral Cancer
	Date on certificateRow14: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow15: 1
	Name of CourseRow15: Systemic Health and Implant Failure
	Date on certificateRow15: 1/17/19
	Number of CE hoursRow16: 
	Name of CourseRow16: 
	Date on certificateRow16: 
	Number of CE hoursRow17: 
	Name of CourseRow17: 
	Date on certificateRow17: 
	Number of CE hoursRow18: 
	Name of CourseRow18: 
	Date on certificateRow18: 
	Number of CE hoursRow19: 
	Name of CourseRow19: 
	Date on certificateRow19: 
	Number of CE hoursRow20: 
	Name of CourseRow20: 
	Date on certificateRow20: 
	Number of CE hoursRow21: 36
	Name of CourseRow21: Total:
	Date on certificateRow21: 
	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	TaskRow1: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow1: 
	Due DateRow1: 
	OLE to distributeRow1: 
	TaskRow2: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow2: 
	Due DateRow2: 
	OLE to distributeRow2: 
	TaskRow3: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow3: 
	Due DateRow3: 
	OLE to distributeRow3: 
	TaskRow4: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow4: 
	Due DateRow4: 
	OLE to distributeRow4: 
	TaskRow5: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow5: 
	Due DateRow5: 
	OLE to distributeRow5: 
	TaskRow6: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow6: 
	Due DateRow6: 
	OLE to distributeRow6: 
	TaskRow7: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow7: 
	Due DateRow7: 
	OLE to distributeRow7: 
	TaskRow8: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow8: 
	Due DateRow8: 
	OLE to distributeRow8: 
	TaskRow9: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow9: 
	Due DateRow9: 
	OLE to distributeRow9: 
	TaskRow10: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow10: 
	Due DateRow10: 
	OLE to distributeRow10: 
	TaskRow11: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow11: 
	Due DateRow11: 
	OLE to distributeRow11: 
	TaskRow12: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow12: 
	Due DateRow12: 
	OLE to distributeRow12: 
	TaskRow13: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow13: 
	Due DateRow13: 
	OLE to distributeRow13: 
	TaskRow14: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow14: 
	Due DateRow14: 
	OLE to distributeRow14: 
	TaskRow15: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow15: 
	Due DateRow15: 
	OLE to distributeRow15: 
	TaskRow16: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow16: 
	Due DateRow16: 
	OLE to distributeRow16: 
	TaskRow17: 
	Person Responsible to CompleteRow17: 
	Due DateRow17: 
	OLE to distributeRow17: 


